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PART | - FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We refer to Highwoods Properties, Inc. as the “Canyy’ Highwoods Realty Limited Partnership as ti@pérating Partnershipthe
Company’s common stock as “Common Stock” or “Comn&irares,” the Company’s preferred stock as “PrefeStock” or Preferre
Shares,” the Operating Partnership’s common pastigrinterests as “Common Units,” the Operatingtri@aships preferred partnerst
interests as “Preferred Units” and in-service proee (excluding forsale residential condominiums) to which the Compang/or th
Operating Partnership have title and 100.0% owmgmdghts as the “Wholly Owned Properties.” Refares to “we” and “our’mean th
Company and the Operating Partnership, collectjuaijess the context indicates otherwise.

The partnership agreement provides that the Opgr&artnership will assume and pay when due, orbgise the Company for paym
of, all costs and expenses relating to the ownprsiid operations of, or for the benefit of, the @girg Partnership. The partners
agreement further provides that all expenses o€tirapany are deemed to be incurred for the beoiefite Operating Partnership.

Certain information contained herein is presentedfaOctober 22, 2012the latest practicable date for financial infotima prior to ths
filing of this Quarterly Report.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(Unaudited and in thousands, except share anchpee slata)

September 30, December 31,

2012 2011
Assets:
Real estate assets, at cost:
Land $ 371,47¢ % 355,69:
Buildings and tenant improvements 3,200,35! 3,009,15!
Development in process 11,56¢ —
Land held for development 102,48: 105,20t
3,685,87 3,470,05!
Less-accumulated depreciation (926,66%) (869,04¢)
Net real estate assets 2,759,20: 2,601,00
For-sale residential condominiums 1,23¢ 4,751
Real estate and other assets, net, held for sale — 124,27:
Cash and cash equivalents 9,08¢ 11,18¢
Restricted cash 21,57¢ 26,66¢
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $3,437 $B8&48, respectively 21,14« 30,09
Mortgages and notes receivable, net of allowan&2af and $61, respectively 16,94: 18,60(
Accrued straight-line rents receivable, net ofwalace of $1,076 and $1,294, respectively 112,66( 99,49(
Investments in and advances to unconsolidate deéfd 78,40¢ 100,36
Deferred financing and leasing costs, net of acdated amortization of $73,579 and $62,319, respelsti 149,17( 127,77
Prepaid expenses and other assets, net of accechalawortization of $12,585 and $15,089, respegtivel 40,45: 36,78:
Total Assets $ 3,209,838 $ 3,180,99
Liabilities, Noncontrolling Interests in the Operating Partnership and Equity:
Mortgages and notes payable $ 1,77855 $ 1,868,901
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheiitiiedbil 152,05: 148,60
Financing obligations 27,79: 30,15(
Liabilities, net, held for sale — 35,81¢
Total Liabilities 1,958,39! 2,083,47.
Commitments and contingencies
Noncontrolling interests in the Operating Partngrsh 123,14: 110,65!
Equity:
Preferred Stock, $.01 par value, 50,000,000 awtbdrshares;

8.625% Series A Cumulative Redeemable PreferredeSliguidation preference $1,000 per share), 20,0

shares issued and outstanding 29,077 29,077
Common Stock, $.01 par value, 200,000,000 authdshares;

78,529,922 and 72,647,697 shares issued and aditsjanespectively 78t 72€
Additional paid-in capital 1,985,32. 1,803,99
Distributions in excess of net income availabledommon stockholders (877,967 (845,85))
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (13,42¢) (5,739

Total Stockholders’ Equity 1,123,79 982,21
Noncontrolling interests in consolidated affiliates 4,54¢ 4,64¢

Total Equity 1,128,34! 986,85¢
Total Liabilities, Noncontrolling Interests in ti@perating Partnership and Equity $ 320988 § 3,180,99.

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsistents.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Income

(Unaudited and in thousands, except per share asjoun

Rental and other revenues

Operating expenses:
Rental property and other expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Impairments of real estate assets
General and administrative

Total operating expenses

Interest expense:
Contractual
Amortization of deferred financing costs

Financing obligations

Other income:
Interest and other income

Losses on debt extinguishment

Income from continuing operations before dispositio of property, condominiums and investments in
unconsolidated affiliates and equity in earnings ofinconsolidated affiliates

Gains on disposition of property
Gains/(losses) on for-sale residential condominiums
Gains on disposition of investments in unconsodidatffiliates
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates
Income from continuing operations
Discontinued operations:
Income from discontinued operations

Net gains on disposition of discontinued operations

Net income
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteseim the Operating Partnership
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling intdeeim consolidated affiliates
Dividends on Preferred Stock
Excess of Preferred Stock redemption/repurchageowes carrying value

Net income available for common stockholders

Earnings per Common Share — basic:
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon stockholders
Net income available for common stockholders
Weighted average Common Shares outstanding — basic

Earnings per Common Share — diluted:
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon stockholders
Net income available for common stockholders
Weighted average Common Shares outstanding —dlilute

Dividends declared per Common Share

Net income available for common stockholders:

Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders

Income fram dicenntiniied nneratinng availahle fimmaon <tnckhnlder

Three Months Ended
September 30,

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

2012 2011 2012 2011
12821 $ 117,26 382,12( $ 339,49
47,23: 44,03: 138,13 122,35t
38,65 35,05 115,75 99,65¢
— 2,42¢ — 2,42¢
9,72t 12,21: 28,29¢ 27,98
95,60 93,72 282,18t 252,42
22,91 23,26 70,30¢ 68,44
907 80€ 2,70¢ 2,44¢
(205) 201 (357) 584
23,61 24,27 72,66 71,47¢
1,01¢ 1,50¢ 5,88: 5,27
— — (979) (24)
1,01¢ 1,50¢ 4,91( 5,25:
10,90¢ 77¢€ 32,18 20,84
— 262 — 462
80 (476) 25¢ (322)
— 2,28: — 2,28:
1,32 1,11¢ 2,67 3,93¢
12,31 3,957 35,10¢ 27,20(
547 1,71¢ 4,06: 5,34¢
22,93 2,57¢ 29,45t 2,57¢
23,48 4,281 33,51 7,921
35,79¢ 8,24¢ 68,62 35,12:
(1,659 (366) (3,166) (1,496)
(159) (249) (56€) (559)
(627) (627) (1,88 (3,926
— — — (1,89%)
3335. $ 7,00 63,01 $ 27,25(
015 $ 0.0/ 04z $  0.2¢
0.2¢ 0.0¢ 0.4z 0.1C
04/ $  0.4C 08/ $ 03¢
76,59( 72,49 74,70 72,17¢
014 $ 0.0/ 04z $  0.2¢
0.2¢ 0.0¢ 0.4z 0.1¢
043 $  0.4C 08/ $ 03¢
80,49 76,40 78,56¢ 76,12
0428 $  0.42¢ 1278 $  1.27F
10,98 $ 2,92 31,090 $ 19,72
22 37" 4.07¢ 31.92: 7 52¢



Net income available for common stockholders $ 3335 $ 7,00 $ 63,01 $ 27,250

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsdistents.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

(Unaudited and in thousands)

Three Months Ended

Nine Months Ended

September 30, September 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011
Comprehensive income/(loss):
Net income $ 3579%¢ $ 824« $ 6862t $ 35,12
Other comprehensive income/(loss):

Unrealized gains/(losses) on tax increment finapbiond (203) 60C 482 12¢
Unrealized losses on cash flow hedges (3,337) — (10,429 —
Amortization of cash flow hedges 791 (30) 2,25( (87)
Total other comprehensive income/(loss) (2,647 57C (7,692 42
Total comprehensive income 33,14¢ 8,81« 60,93 35,16:
Less-comprehensive (income) attributable to nomodimg interests (1,812 (615) (3,739 (2,050
Comprehensive income attributable to the Company $ 3133 § 819 § 57,20 $ 33,11l

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgistents.
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Balance at December 31, 2011

Issuances of Common Stock, net

Conversions of Common Units to Common Stock

Dividends on Common Stock

Dividends on Preferred Stock

Adjustment of noncontrolling interests in the Opierg

Partnership to fair value

Distributions to noncontrolling interests in coridated

affiliates
Issuances of restricted stock

Share-based compensation expense

Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteee the

Operating Partnership

Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteees

consolidated affiliates
Comprehensive income:

Net income

Other comprehensive loss
Total comprehensive income

Balance at September 30, 2012

HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Equity
(Unaudited and in thousands, except share amounts)

Balance at December 31, 2010

Issuances of Common Stock, net

Conversions of Common Units to
Common Stock

Dividends on Common Stock

Dividends on Preferred Stock

Adjustment of noncontrolling interests in
the Operating Partnership to fair
value

Distributions to noncontrolling interests
in consolidated affiliates

Issuances of restricted stock

Redemptions/repurchases of Preferred
Stock

Share-based compensation expense

Net (income) attributable to
noncontrolling interests in the
Operating Partnership

Net (income) attributable to
noncontrolling interests in
consolidated affiliates

Comprehensive income:

Net income
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Series A Distributions in
Cumulative Non-controlling Excess of Net
Redeemable Additional Accumulated Interests in Income Available
Number of Common Preferred Paid-In Other Compre- Consolidated for Common
Common Shares Stock Shares Capital hensive Loss Affiliates Stockholders Total

72,647,69 $ 72€ $ 29,077 $1,803,99 $ (5,73) $ 4,64¢ $ (845,85) $ 986,85¢
5,701,97. 57 —_ 186,61 —_ —_ —_ 186,67
21,36¢ = = 731 = = = 731
_ _ — — — (95,127 (95,127
— — — — — (1,887) (1,887)
— — (12,489 — — — (12,489
= = = — (663) — (663)
158,88! — — — — — — —
2 — 6,462 — — — 6,46¢
—_ —_ —_ —_ —_ (3,16€) (3,16€)
— — — — 56€ (56€) —
— — — — — 68,62¢ 68,62¢
- — — (7,692 — — (7,692
60,93¢
78,529,92 $ 78E $ 29,077 $1,985,32; $ (23,42¢p $ 4,54¢ $ (877,969 $ 1,128,34!

Series A Series B Distributions in

Cumulative Cumulative Non-controlling Excess of Net

Redeemable Redeemable Additional Accumulated Interests in Income Available
Number of Common Preferred Preferred Paid-In Other Compre- Consolidated for Common
Common Shares Stock Shares Shares Capital hensive Loss Affiliates Stockholders Total

71,690,48 $ 717 $ 29,09: $ 52,50( $1,766,88! $ (3,64 $ 4,46( $ (761,78%  $ 1,088,22:
711,23¢ 7 — — 22,03¢ — — — 22,04:
43,30¢ = = = 1,344 = = e 1,344
—_ —_ —_ —_ —_ —_ (91,900 (91,900
_ — — — — — (3,92¢) (3,926
—_ —_ —_ 10,177 —_ —_ —_ 10,177
— — — — — (39)) — (39))
134,35: — — — — — — — —
— (15) (52,500 1,89 — — (1,89 (52,51%)
2 — — 4,76¢ — — — 4,771
= = = = = = (1,49¢) (1,49¢)
—_ —_ —_ —_ —_ 554 (5549 —_
— — — — — — 35,12: 35,12:
— — — — 42 — — 42
35,16¢
72,579,38 $ 72€ $ 29,077 $ - $1,807,10 $ (3,606 $ 4,62% $ (826,43) $ 1,011,49

Balance at September 30, 2011

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsistents.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of lease incentives and acquisitiolated intangible assets and liabilities
Share-based compensation expense
Allowance for losses on accounts and accrued sirdiite rents receivable
Amortization of deferred financing costs
Amortization of cash flow hedges
Impairments of real estate assets
Losses on debt extinguishment
Net gains on disposition of property
(Gains)/losses on for-sale residential condominiums
Gains on disposition of investments in unconsodidatffiliates
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates
Changes in financing obligations
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated &ifiés
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Accrued straight-line rents receivable
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheiitiebil
Net cash provided by operating activities
Investing activities:
Investments in acquired real estate and relatesigible assets, net of cash acquired
Investments in development in process
Investments in tenant improvements and deferresirigaosts
Investments in building improvements
Net proceeds from disposition of real estate assets
Net proceeds from disposition of for-sale resid#r@dondominiums
Proceeds from disposition of investments in unchdated affiliates
Distributions of capital from unconsolidated aties
Repayments of mortgages and notes receivable
Investments in and advances to unconsolidatedeaéf
Changes in restricted cash and other investingiaes
Net cash used in investing activities
Financing activities:
Dividends on Common Stock
Redemptions/repurchases of Preferred Stock
Dividends on Preferred Stock
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in the&dgating Partnership
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in condated affiliates
Proceeds from the issuance of Common Stock
Costs paid for the issuance of Common Stock
Repurchase of shares related to tax withholdings

Borrowings on revolving credit facility

Renavmentea nf revnlvina credit facili

Nine Months Ended September 30,

2012 2011
68,62 35,12
117,76 103,59
35¢ 1,347
6,46 4,771
1,23¢ 1,58¢
2,70¢ 2,44¢
2,25( (87)
— 2,42¢
972 24
(29,45%) (3,03
(255) 322
— (2,287)
(2,670) (3,939
(1,010 (339
3,24¢ 3,40
5,31( (3,499
(3,25¢) (586)
(13,609 (9,280)
(20,662) 4,11¢
138,01 136,12!
(158,201 (75,510
(5,397) (5,83%)
(61,829 (59,69:)
(27,229 (9,52)
152,45 16,53(
3,76¢ 2,77
— 4,75¢
1,03¢ 1,30«
1,657 33¢
(3,929) (39,66%)
2,90 (15,599
(94,75() (180,12)
(95,12:) (91,900
— (52,51)
(1,881) (3,926
(4,739 (4,819
(662) (391)
191,66 22,04
(2,745) —
(2,249) —
219,80 285,40
(402 NN (150 ADN



Borrowings on mortgages and notes payable

Repayments of mortgages and notes payable

Payments on financing obligations

Additions to deferred financing costs and otheariicing activities

Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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(1,316) —

(3,06%) (6,01

(45,370) 40,88(
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows — Continued

(Unaudited and in thousands)

Nine Months Ended Septembe

30,
2012 2011
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents $ (2,102 $ (3,11¢)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the gherio 11,18¢ 14,20¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period $ 9,08¢ $ 11,08t

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Nine Months Ended September 30,
2012 2011

Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capitalized $ 72,79¢  $ 69,32:

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing anéth&incing activities:

Nine Months Ended September 30,

2012 2011
Unrealized losses on cash flow hedges $ (10,429 % =
Conversion of Common Units to Common Stock 731 1,34«
Changes in accrued capital expenditures 1,82¢ 3,707
Write-off of fully depreciated real estate assets 36,91¢ 39,03¢
Write-off of fully amortized deferred financing afehsing costs 14,18¢ 13,68:
Unrealized gains/(losses) on marketable secunfie®n-qualified deferred compensation plan 31C (354)
Adjustment of noncontrolling interests in the Opieiga Partnership to fair value 12,48t (20,177
Unrealized gains on tax increment financing bond 482 12¢
Assumption of mortgages and notes payable relatadduisition activities — 192,36
Reduction of advances to unconsolidated affiliatdsted to acquisition activities 26,00( —
Issuances of Common Units to acquire real estatas 2,29¢ —

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2012
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sire data)
(Unaudited)

1. Description of Business and Significant Accating Policies
Description of Business

Highwoods Properties, Inc., together with its cdiasded subsidiaries (the “Company”), is a fullyteégrated, self-administered and self-
managed equity real estate investment trust (“REtf&t provides leasing, management, developmenstruction and other customedatec
services for its properties and for third partiége Company conducts virtually all of its activitiehrough Highwoods Realty Limit
Partnership (the “Operating Partnership”). At Seygier 30, 2012 , the Company and/or the Operatimtn&ship wholly owned: 299 in-
service office, industrial and retail propertiesmprising 29.0 million square feet; five for-sakesidential condominiums; 584cres c
undeveloped land suitable for future developmetylich 518 acres are considered core assets;mmdffice property under development.

The Company is the sole general partner of the @ioey Partnership. At September 30, 2018e Company owned all of the Prefel
Units and 78.1 million , or 95.4% , of the Commonitd in the Operating Partnership. Limited partpénsluding one officer andwo
directors of the Company, own the remaining 3.8iomnlCommon Units. In the event the Company issues shar€ommon Stock, the r
proceeds are contributed to the Operating Partipeishexchange for additional Common Units. Gerlgrahe Operating Partnership
required to redeem each Common Unit at the reaqpfabe holder thereof for cash equal to the valuene share of the CompasyCommol
Stock, $ 0.01 par value, based on the averageeofrtrket price for the 1ffading days immediately preceding the notice ddtsuct
redemption, provided that the Company at its optimay elect to acquire any such Common Units presefdr redemption for cash or ¢
share of Common Stock. The Common Units owned Byabmpany are not redeemable. During the nine marided September 30, 2012
the Company redeemed 21,366 Common Units for anlikeber of shares of Common Stock and issued 66&864mon Units to acquire re
estate assets. As a result of this activity, thegrgage of Common Units owned by the Company aszé from 95.1% d&ecember 31, 20:
to 95.4% at September 30, 2012 .

Common Stock Offerings

The Company has entered into equity sales agresmsifit various financial institutions to offer asdll, from time to time, shares of
Common Stock by means of ordinary brokers' tranms@ston the New York Stock Exchange or otherwismatket prices prevailing at t
time of sale, at prices related to prevailing mageices or at negotiated prices or as otherwiseemhwith any of the institutions. During
three and nine months ended September 30, 20€2CGdmpany issued 2,867,768 and 5,490sh&tes, respectively, of Common Stock u
these agreements at an average gross sales p&c8322 and $33.38er share, respectively, raising net proceedst aétles commissio
and expenses, of $ 93.8 million and $180.2 millioespectively.

Basis of Presentation

Our Consolidated Financial Statements are preparednformity with accounting principles generadlgcepted in the United States
America (“GAAP”). Our Consolidated Balance SheeDatcember 31, 201Was recast from previously reported amounts tecefin ree
estate and other assets, net, held for sale thogenties which qualified as held for sale durihg three months ended September 30, 2012
Our Consolidated Statements of Income for the ttae# nine months ended September 30, 20&de recast from previously repor
amounts to reflect in discontinued operations tperations for those properties that qualified fescdntinued operations. Prior per
amounts related to capital expenditures in our Glisteted Statements of Cash Flows have been disggtgd to conform to the current pe
presentation.

Our Consolidated Financial Statements include ther@ting Partnership, wholly owned subsidiaries tnage entities in which we he
the controlling financial interest. All intercompatransactions and accounts have been eliminate8egtember 30, 2012 almbcember 3.
2011 , we had involvement with no entities thatasacluded to be variable interest entities.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sire data)

1. Description of Business and Significant Accating Policies — Continued

The unaudited interim consolidated financial stanta and accompanying unaudited consolidated fiabimformation, in the opinion
management, contain all adjustments (including mbmexcurring accruals) necessary for a fair predent of our financial position, results
operations and cash flows. We have omitted certaias and other information from the interim coigaiked financial statements presente
this Quarterly Report on Form 1D-as permitted by SEC rules and regulations. Tisesolidated Financial Statements should be re
conjunction with our 2011 Annual Report on FormKLO-

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statemémtaccordance with GAAP requires us to make edémand assumptions that af
the amounts reported in the consolidated finarst&tements and accompanying notes. Actual resulil differ from those estimates.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

As a result of adopting certain new or amended @uibog pronouncements in the first quarter of 204@,have enhanced our disclos
of assets and liabilities measured at fair valu @acted to continue use of credit valuation adjesits on a net basis by counterparty as
of the calculation to determine the fair value of derivatives. Our disclosures now include: (gnficant transfers between Levels 1 and
the fair value hierarchy, if any; (2) additionalagtitative and qualitative information regarding fealue measurements categorized as Le
of the fair value hierarchy; and (3) the hierarchgssification for items whose fair value is notarsled on our Consolidated Balance St
but was disclosed previously in our Notes to Cadstéd Financial Statements. Additionally, we havesented comprehensive income
separate financial statement entitied ConsolidStatements of Comprehensive Income.

2. Real Estate Assets
Acquisitions

During the third quarter of 2012 , we acquired ¢hpeoperties for a total purchase price of $161iltam , consisting of (1) a92,00(
square foot office property in Atlanta, GA for $418 million and (2) two medical office properties Greensboro, NC for $ 16.3 millign
which included the issuance of 66,864 Common Uanitd contingent consideration with fair value at éleguisition date of $0.7 millionWe
expensed approximately $0.7 milliaf acquisition costs related to these transactidie assets acquired and liabilities assumed
recorded at fair value as determined by manageivesed on information available at the acquisitiatecand on current assumptions ¢
future operations.

The following table sets forth a summary of theetssacquired and liabilities assumed in the actipisdf the office property in Atlant
GA discussed above:

Total
Purchase Price
Allocation
Real estate assets $ 135,12¢
Acquisition-related intangible assets (in deferfiaencing and leasing costs) 21,631
Acquisition-related below market lease liabilit{@s accounts payable, accrued expenses and oddities) (12,879
Total allocation $ 144,89
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sire data)

2. Real Estate Assets - Continued

During the third quarter of 2011, we acquired a-bixilding, 1,540,000 square foot office complexXittsburgh, PA and a 503,08Quar:
foot office building in Atlanta, GA for a purchapece of $188.5 million and $78.3 million , respgety.

The following table sets forth our rental and otlevenues and net income, adjusted for intereseresep and depreciation ¢
amortization related to purchase price allocatiang acquisition costs assuming: (1) the 492,00@rgqgfoot office building in Atlanta, G
was acquired on January 1, 20Mith proforma adjustments being included in thieé and nine months ended September 30, 20120414
and (2) the office complex in Pittsburgh, PA ane 893,000 square foot office building in AtlantaA &ere acquired on January 1, 2010,
proforma adjustments being included in the threlerdne months ended September 30, 2011.

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011
Proforma rental and other revenues $ 132,63 $ 132,26¢ $ 395,16. $ 385,24t
Proforma net income $ 3576 $ 7,626 $ 6852t $ 33,26¢
Proforma earnings per share - basic $ 04: % 0.0¢ $ 082 % 0.3t
Proforma earnings per share - diluted $ 04z $ 0.0¢ $ 08/ $ 0.3t

During the second quarter of 2012 , we also acduard78,30Gquare foot office property in Cary, NC from our BLjoint venture fa
an agreed upon value of $26.0 million by reducheghialance of the advance due to us from the yeinture.

Dispositions
During the third quarter of 2012 , we sold:
» an office property in Kansas City, MO for $ @fillion and recorded gain on disposition of diséonéd operations of $ 1.9 millian
» five office buildings in Nashville, TN for $ 401 million and recorded gain on disposition of disitoued operations of $ 7.0 millian

» three buildings in Jackson, MS and Atlanta, @A $ 86.5 millionand recorded gain on disposition of discontinueeragons of .
14.0 million .

During the second quarter of 2012 , we sold arceffiroperty in Pinellas County, FL for gross pratsef $ 9.5 millionand recorded ga
on disposition of discontinued operations of $rhilion related to this disposition.

During the first quarter of 2012, we sold 96 vacaarital residential units in Kansas City, MO fopogg proceeds of $11.0 milliaanc
recorded gain on disposition of discontinued openatof $5.1 million related to this disposition.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sire data)

3. Mortgages and Notes Receivable

The following table sets forth our mortgages antésoeceivable:

September 30, December 31,

2012 2011
Seller financing (first mortgages) $ 15,85: $ 17,18(
Less allowance — —
15,85:¢ 17,18(
Promissory notes 1,301 1,481
Less allowance (21)) (61)
1,09( 1,42(
Mortgages and notes receivable, net $ 16,941 § 18,60(

Our mortgages and notes receivable consist priynafikeller financing issued in conjunction withaaisposition transactions in 20.
This seller financing is evidenced by first mortgagecured by the assignment of rents and the lyindereal estate assets. We evaluatt
collectability of the receivables by monitoring tleasing statistics and market fundamentals ofettessets. As of September 30, 201R¢
payments on both mortgages receivable were cuaraghthere were no other indications of impairmenthe receivables. We may be requ
to take impairment charges in the future if anthtoextent the underlying collateral diminishesatue.

The following table sets forth our notes receivalewance, which relates only to promissory notes:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011
Beginning notes receivable allowance $ 118 $ 617 $ 61 $ 86¢
Bad debt expense — — — 184
Recoveries/write-offs/other 93 (72) 15C (507)
Total notes receivable allowance $ 211 § 54t § 211 § 54t
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
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4. Investments in and Advances to Affiliates
Unconsolidated Affiliates
We have equity interests of up to 50.@9various joint ventures with unrelated third festand a secured debt interest in one of -

joint ventures, as described below. The followiaglé sets forth the combined, summarized inconmterstnts for our unconsolidated jc
ventures on the purchase accounting basis:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011
Income Statements:
Rental and other revenues $ 2505 $ 25620 $ 7592( $ 75,61¢
Expenses:
Rental property and other expenses 11,62« 10,80¢ 35,70¢ 33,57¢
Depreciation and amortization 6,35¢ 6,75¢ 18,83¢ 19,67(
Impairments of real estate assets — — 7,18( —
Interest expense 4,98( 5,97¢ 16,07" 17,84
Total expenses 22,95¢ 23,54( 77,80z 71,08"
Income/(loss) before disposition of properties 2,092 2,08: (1,889 4,53z
Gains on disposition of properties — — 6,27¢ —
Net income $ 209 $ 2,08 $ 4392 $ 4,53
Our share of:
Depreciation and amortization of real estate assets $ 2028 $ 2066 $ 5801 $ 6,19
Impairments of real estate assets $ — % — $ 100 % —
Interest expense $ 1,778 $ 1968 $ 559 $ 6,15¢
Net income $ 914 $ 44z  $ 125 $ 2,11
Our share of net income $ 914 $ 44z $ 1,25. $ 2,11:
Adjustments for management and other fees 41C 671 1,41¢ 1,821
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates $ 132« § 111z § 267C § 393

During the second quarter of 2011, we provided38.8 million interesbnly secured loan to our DLF | joint venture thagmally was
scheduled to mature in March 201Phe loan bears interest at LIBOR plus 500 basistp. The maturity date of the loan has been ebddric
December 31, 2012 . In the second quarter of 20th2 outstanding balance of the loan was reducebl 18.0 millionas a result of ol
acquisition of an office property from the jointntare. We recorded interest income from this loamierest and other income $8.1 millior
and $0.5 million during the three months ended &aper 30, 2012 and 2011 , respectively, and $0l&mand $0.8 million during thaine
months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011 , resggcti

During the second quarter of 2012 , our DLF Il jorenture obtained a $50.0 million , thrgear secured mortgage loan from a t
party lender, bearing a fixed interest rate of 3&%$39.1 millionof the loan and a floating interest rate of LIBORs250 basis points
$10.9 million of the loan, which was used by thiafj@enture to repay a secured loan at maturity tioird party lender.

During the first quarter of 2012, we recorded $hilion as our share of impairments of real estatgets on twoffice properties in o

DLF | joint venture, due to a decline in projecttupancy and a change in the assumed holdingdpefithose assets, which reduced
expected future cash flows from the properties.
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4. Investments in and Advances to Affiliates - @htinued
Consolidated Affiliates
During the third quarter of 2012 , we provided eeth-year, $ 20.8 million interestily secured loan to our Harborview Plaza |
venture that is scheduled to mature in Septemb®s 2@hich the joint venture used to repay a secunad bkt maturity to a third party lenc
This new loan bears interest at LIBOR plus 500dpsints, subject to a LIBOR floor of 0.5% .

5. Intangible Assets and Below Market Lease Lidlities

The following table sets forth total intangible @tssand acquisitiorelated below market lease liabilities, net of analated amortizatior

September 30, December 31,
2012 2011
Assets:

Deferred financing costs $ 19,95 $ 18,04«
Less accumulated amortization (8,115 (5,797
11,837 12,24°
Deferred leasing costs (including lease incentare$ acquisition-related intangible assets) 202,79° 172,04¢
Less accumulated amortization (65,464 (56,529
137,33¢ 115,52
Deferred financing and leasing costs, net $ 149,17¢  $ 127,77:

Liabilities (in accounts payable, accrued expensesd other liabilities):
Acquisition-related below market lease liabilities $ 28,01t $ 16,44:
Less accumulated amortization (2,556 (977)
$ 2545¢ % 15,47(

The following table sets forth amortization of inggble assets and acquisition-related below mdeeesste liabilities:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011
Amortization of deferred financing costs $ 907 $ 806 $ 2,70¢ $ 2,44¢
Amortization of deferred leasing costs and acqoisitelated intangible assets (in depreciation and
amortization) $ 683 $ 518 $ 2054: $ 13,94¢
Amortization of lease incentives (in rental andestrevenues) $ 39 % 36 $ 107t $ 1,01C
Amortization of acquisition-related intangible assgn rental and other revenues) $ 43 % 23¢ ¢ 1027 $ 617
Amortization of acquisition-related intangible assgn rental property and other expenses) $ 4€ 9 — 4€ 9 =
Amortization of acquisition-related below markedde liabilities (in rental and other revenues)  $ 647 $ (230 $ (1749 ¢ (280)
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5. Intangible Assets and Below Market Lease Lidlities - Continued

The following table sets forth scheduled future dimation of intangible assets and below markesédbilities:

Amortization of
Deferred Leasing

Costs and Amortization of Amortization of
Acquisition- Amortization of Acquisition- Acquisition-
Related Acquisition- Related Related Below
Intangible Assets  Amortization of Related Intangible Assets  Market Lease
Amortization of (in Depreciation  Lease Incentives Intangible Assets (in Rental Liabilities (in
Deferred and (in Rental and (in Rental and Property and Rental and Other
Financing Costs Amortization) Other Revenues) Other Revenues) Other Expenses) Revenues)
October 1 through December 31, 2012 $ 1,06¢ $ 7,02C $ 34¢ % 29: % 14C % (802)
2013 3,381 25,08( 1,28¢ 991 55z (3,16¢)
2014 3,00¢ 21,19( 1,13¢ 734 G55 (3,100
2015 2,39 17,21¢ 90z 54¢ 558 (2,899
2016 1,02 14,04 70¢€ 48¢ 55z (2,609
Thereafter 95¢ 37,29: 2,53¢ 96¢ 2,19¢ (12,88¢)
$ 11,837 $ 121,84! $ 6,91t $ 4,028 % 454¢ $ (25,459
Weighted average remaining amortization
periods as of September 30, 2012 (in
3.€ 7.1 7.€ 5.€ 8.2 9.¢

years)

The following table sets forth the intangible assetquired and below market lease liabilities asgzlias a result of 2012 acquisit
activity:

Above Market In-Place Tax Below
Lease Lease Abatement Market
Intangible Intangible Intangible Lease
Assets Assets Assets Liabilities
Amount recorded from acquisition activity $ 128 $ 2147¢ $ 459 $ (11,879
5.2 9.2 8.2 11.c

Weighted average remaining amortization periody€ars)

6. Mortgages and Notes Payable

The following table sets forth our mortgages antkagayable:

September 30, December 31,

2012 2011
Secured indebtedness $ 685,39( $ 715,74.
Unsecured indebtedness 1,093,16! 1,153,16

Total mortgages and notes payable $ 177855 $  1,868,90

At September 30, 2012our secured mortgage loans were secured by sé&gteeassets with an aggregate undepreciated lao& of ¢
1,148.2 million .
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6. Mortgages and Notes Payable - Continued

Our $ 475.0 million unsecured revolving credit faigiis scheduled to mature on July 27, 204 includes an accordion feature
allows for an additional $ 75.0 millioof borrowing capacity subject to additional lendemmitments. Assuming no defaults have occu
we have an option to extend the maturity for anitaaithl year. The interest rate at our current itreatings is LIBOR plus 150 basis poi
and the annual facility fee is 35 basis points. irfterest rate and facility fee are based on tlghdri of the publicly announced ratings fi
Moody's Investors Service or Standard & Poor'srigatiServices. We use our revolving credit facilityworking capital purposes and for
shortterm funding of our development and acquisitiorivétgt and, in certain instances, the repaymenttbeodebt. The continued ability
borrow under the revolving credit facility allows to quickly capitalize on strategic opportuni@gshort-term interest rates. There ws89%
million and $ 59.5 million outstanding under ouvatring credit facility at September 30, 2012 anck@ber 22, 2012 respectively. At bot
September 30, 2012 and October 22, 2012 , we h@adl $nillion of outstanding letters of credit, which reduces #wailability on ou
revolving credit facility. As a result, the unuseapacity of our revolving credit facility at Septieen 30, 2012 and October 22, 2043as ¢
385.9 million and $ 415.4 million , respectively.

During the third quarter of 2012 , we paid down &neount outstanding under our variable rate coastmi loan by $34.3 million .

During the second quarter of 2012 , we repurch&3@dl million principal amount of unsecured notae March 201'bearing interest «
5.85% for a purchase price of 107.5% of par valMle.recorded $1.0 million of loss on debt extingmst related to this repurchase.

During the first quarter of 2012, we obtained a%R2million , sevenyear unsecured bank term loan bearing interestBOR plus 19
basis points. This floating interest rate effediiweas fixed by the interest rate swaps discuseddate 7. The proceeds were used to pa
amounts then outstanding under our revolving craditity.

We are currently in compliance with the debt covesand other requirements with respect to ourtanting debt.
7. Derivative Financial Instruments

We have six floating-to-fixed interest rate swaps $even -year periods each with respect to aneggtg of $225.0 million LIBOR-
based borrowings. These swaps effectively fix thdeulying LIBOR rate at a weighted average of 1%78The counterparties under
swaps are major financial institutions. The swapeaments contain a provision whereby if we defaaltany of our indebtedness, if gre
than $ 10.0 milliorand that results in repayment of such indebtedbesg), or becoming capable of being accelerateth&yender, then v
could also be declared in default on our derivatibligations. These swaps have been designatendaara being accounted for as cash
hedges with changes in fair value recorded in otloenprehensive income each reporting period. Na gailoss was recognized relatet
hedge ineffectiveness or to amounts excluded frifettiveness testing on our cash flow hedges dutiegnine months endeskeptember 3
2012 . As of September 30, 2012 , we have not gastg collateral related to our interest rate siiaplity.

Amounts reported in accumulated other comprehensis® ("AOCL") related to derivatives will be res$ified to interest expense
interest payments are made on our variabte-debt. During the period from October 1, 20i@ugh September 30, 2013, we estimate
$3.3 million will be reclassified as an increasénterest expense.

The following table sets forth the fair value ofr @erivative instruments:

September 30, December 31,

2012 2011
Liability Derivatives:
Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges in acotsipayable, accrued expenses and other liabilities
Interest rate swaps $ 10,27:  § 2,20z
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7. Derivative Financial Instruments - Continued

The following table sets forth the effect of ouslkedlow hedges on AOCL and interest expense:

Three Months Ended

Nine Months Ended

September 30, September 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011
Derivatives Designated as Cash Flow Hedges:

Amount of unrealized losses recognized in AOCL onativatives (effective portion):

Interest rate swaps $ (3,33) $ — % (10,429 $ —
Amount of (gains)/losses reclassified out of AOCLInto contractual interest expense

(effective portion):

Interest rate swaps $ 791 % (30 $ 2250 §$ (87

8. Noncontrolling Interests

Noncontrolling Interests in the Operating Partnership

Noncontrolling interests in the Operating Partngrsklate to the ownership of Common Units by vasiondividuals and entities ott
than the Company. Net income attributable to notrodimg interests in the Operating Partnershic@nputed by applying the weigh
average percentage of Common Units not owned b timepany during the period, as a percent of the taimber of outstanding Comrmr
Units, to the Operating Partnership’s net incomretie period after deducting distributions on Pnefé Units.

The following table sets forth noncontrolling irgsts in the Operating Partnership:

Nine Months Ended September 30,

2012 2011

Beginning noncontrolling interests in the Operatitaytnership $ 110,65 $ 120,83t
Adjustments of noncontrolling interests in the Gyeng Partnership to fair value 12,48t (20,177
Issuances of Common Units 2,29¢ —
Conversion of Common Units to Common Stock (737) (1,344

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interdstshe Operating Partnership 3,16¢ 1,49¢
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in the&ating Partnership (4,739 (4,81¢)
Total noncontrolling interests in the OperatingtRarship $ 123,14:  $ 105,99:

The following table sets forth net income availatdecommon stockholders and transfers from norrotiittg interests in the Operati
Partnership:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

September 30, September 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011
Net income available for common stockholders $ 3337 $ 7,00z $ 63,01 $ 27,25(
Increase in additional paid in capital from coni@nsof Common Units to Common Stock 10C 70¢ 731 1,34«
Issuances of Common Units (2,299 — (2,299 —
Change from net income available for common stolddrs and transfers from noncontrolling
interests $ 31,155 $ 7,71] $ 61,445 $ 28,591

18




Table of Contents

HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sire data)

8. Noncontrolling Interests - Continued
Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Affiliates

At September 30, 2012 , noncontrolling interestsansolidated affiliates relates to our joint vestpartner's 50.0%nterest in offic
properties located in Richmond, VA. Our joint vengtpartner is an unrelated third party.

9. Disclosure About Fair Value of Financial Instrument

The following summarizes the three levels of inghtst we use to measure fair value, as well asgisets, noncontrolling interests in
Operating Partnership and liabilities that we retpg at fair value using those levels of inputs.

Level 1. Quoted prices in active markets for identicabéssr liabilities.

Our Level 1 assets are investments in marketalderisies that we use to pay benefits under our quelified deferred compensat
plan. Our Level 1 noncontrolling interests in thpe@ating Partnership relate to the ownership of @om Units by various individuals a
entities other than the Company. Our Level 1 ligbis our non-qualified deferred compensation géation.

Level 2.0bservable inputs other than Level 1 prices, ssofuated prices for similar assets or liabilitiggpted prices in markets that
not active; or other inputs that are observableaor be corroborated by observable market dataufostantially the full term of the relai
assets or liabilities.

Our Level 2 asset is the fair value of our mortgagad notes receivable, which was estimated byinbeme approach utilizir
contractual cash flows and markesed interest rates to approximate the priceviioald be paid in an orderly transaction betweenkei
participants.

Our Level 2 liabilities include (1) the fair valeé our mortgages and notes payable, which was astiirby the income approach utiliz
contractual cash flows and markesed interest rates to approximate the priceviioald be paid in an orderly transaction betweenkei
participants and (2) interest rate swaps whosevédire is determined using the market standard odelbgy of netting the discounted fut
fixed cash receipts and the discounted expectéadblarcash payments. The variable cash paymemsrdfterest rate swaps are based o
expectation of future LIBOR interest rates (forwanatves) derived from observed market LIBOR interage curves. In addition, cre
valuation adjustments are incorporated in theviaiues to account for potential nonperformance, tisit were concluded to not be signific
inputs to the calculation for the periods presented

Level 3. Unobservable inputs that are supported by littlen@market activity and that are significant to fag value of the assets
liabilities.

Our Level 3 assets include our tax increment fiframdond, which is not routinely traded but whosaé #alue is determined by t
income approach utilizing contractual cash flowd amarketbased interest rates to estimate the projectedngtiten value based on quo
bid/ask prices for similar unrated municipal boadsl, if any, real estate assets andste residential condominiums recorded at fair @ait
a nonfecurring basis as a result of our quarterly impaint analysis, which were valued using broker apirof value and substantiated
internal cash flow projections.

Our Level 3 liabilities include the fair value ofiocontingent consideration to acquire real estatets and financing obligations, wt
were estimated by the income approach to approrirtia price that would be paid in an orderly tratisa between market participar
utilizing: (1) contractual cash flows; (2) markmdsed interest rates; and (3) a number of othemgs#ons including demand for spe
competition for customers, changes in market raatals, costs of operation and expected owner&htipgs.
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9. Disclosure About Fair Value of Financial Instrument - Continued

The following tables set forth the assets, nonadiinig interests in the Operating Partnership aatilities that we measure at fair va
by level within the fair value hierarchy. We detémmthe level based on the lowest level of substarput used to determine fair value.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Quoted Prices
in Active
Markets for Significant Significant
September 30, Identical Assets Observable Unobservable
2012 or Liabilities Inputs Inputs
Assets:
Mortgages and notes receivable, at fair vadye $ 17,38: $ — % 17,38: $ —
Marketable securities of non-qualified deferred pemsation plan (in prepaid
expenses and other assets) 3,26¢ 3,26¢ — —
Tax increment financing bond (in prepaid expensesaher assets) 15,27( — — 15,27(
Total Assets $ 35,91¢ $ 3,26¢ $ 17,38. $ 15,27(
Noncontrolling Interests in the Operating Partnershp $ 123,14: ¢ 123,14: ¢ — 3 —
Liabilities:
Mortgages and notes payable, at fair vaiye $ 1,889,77 % — $ 188977 $% —
Interest rate swaps (in accounts payable, accrxehses and other liabilities) 10,27 — 10,27 —
Non-qualified deferred compensation obligationgatounts payable, accrued
expenses and other liabilities) 3,264 3,264 — —
Contingent consideration to acquire real estatetags accounts payable, accru
expenses and other liabilities) 563 — — 563
Financing obligations, at fair valyg 18,93( — — 18,93(
Total Liabilities $ 192280 $ 3,26¢ $ 1,900,04 % 19,49t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Quoted Prices
in Active
Markets for Significant Significant
December 31, Identical Assets Observable Unobservable
2011 or Liabilities Inputs Inputs
Assets:
Mortgages and notes receivable, at fair vadye $ 18,99 $ — % 18,99 $ —
Marketable securities of non-qualified deferred pemsation plan (in prepaid
expenses and other assets) 3,14¢ 3,14¢ — —
Tax increment financing bond (in prepaid expensesaher assets) 14,78¢ — — 14,78¢
Impaired real estate assets and for-sale residentidominiums 12,76 — — 12,767
Total Assets $ 49,69: % 3,14¢ % 18,99 $ 27,55t
Noncontrolling Interests in the Operating Partnership $ 110,65! $ 110,65! $ — 8 —
Liabilities:
Mortgages and notes payable, at fair vaiyie $ 1,959,43 % — $ 195943 $ —
Interest rate swaps (in accounts payable, accrygehses and other liabilities) 2,20z — 2,20z —
Non-qualified deferred compensation obligationgatounts payable, accrued
expenses and other liabilities) 3,14¢ 3,14¢ — —
Financing obligations, at fair valyg 18,86¢ — — 18,86¢
Total Liabilities $ 198365 $ 314¢ $ 196164 $ 18,86¢
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9. Disclosure About Fair Value of Financial Instrument - Continued

(1) Amounts carried at historical cost on oun€aidated Balance Sheets at September 30, 201Recember 31, 2011 , respectively.

The following table sets forth the changes in oavél 3 asset and liability, which are recordedaatfalue on our Consolidated Bala

Sheets on a recurring basis:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011
Asset:
Tax Increment Financing Bond:
Beginning balance $ 1537: $ 15,22¢ $ 14,78 $ 15,69¢
Unrealized gains/(losses) (in AOCL) (203) 60C 482 12¢
Ending balance $ 1527( $ 15,82¢ $ 1527( $ 15,82¢
Liability:
Contingent Consideration to Acquire Real Estate Assts:
Beginning balance $ 677 % — % 677 % —
Unrealized gains (in general and administrative) (119 — (119 —
Ending balance $ 56§ — 8 56§ —

During 2007, we acquired a tax increment finandimgd associated with a parking garage developedsbyrhis bond amortizes
maturity in 2020 . The estimated fair value at $egier 30, 2012 was $1.8 millidrelow the outstanding principal due on the bondh¢
discount rate used to fair value this bond waslda#¥is points higher or lower, the fair value of ileed would have been $0.5 millikmwer ol
$0.6 million higher, respectively, as of Septen@r2012. We intend to hold this bond and have concludedl We will not be required
sell this bond before recovery of the bond princifayment of the principal and interest for thedbds guaranteed by us. We have reca
no credit losses related to the bond during theetland nine months ended September 30, 2012 aidd Zb&re is no legal right of offset w

the liability, which we report as a financing olatgn, related to this tax increment financing hond

The following table sets forth quantitative inforiioa about the unobservable inputs of our LevesSeaand liability, which are recorc

at fair value on our Consolidated Balance Sheets m@turring basis:

Fair Value at Valuation Unobservable Rate/
September 30, 2012 Technique Input Percentage
Tax increment financing bond $ 15,27( Income approach Discount rate 10.7%
Contingent consideration to acquire real estatetass $ 563 Income approach Payout percentage 75.0(%
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10. Share-based Payment

During the nine months ended September 30, 2012 granted 190,888tock options with an exercise price equal to tlsieg marke
price of a share of our Common Stock on the datgarit. The fair value of each option grant isreated on the date of grant using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model, which resulted in @ighted average grant date fair value per shafe%#7 . During th@ine months endt
September 30, 2012 , we also granted 90,983 sbétase-based restricted stock and 67,902 sharéstalf returnbased restricted stock w
weighted average grant date fair values per shia$e32.27 and $ 38.71 , respectively. We recordedkshased compensation expense
2.0 million and $ 1.3 million during the three miestended September 30, 2012 and 2011 , respectarady$ 6.5 million and 8.8 million
during the nine months ended September 30, 201228dd , respectively. At September 30, 2012 , thees $5.6 millionof total
unrecognized stock-based compensation costs, whiche recognized over a weighted average remgicontractual term of 2.5 years.

11. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Los

The following table sets forth the components afumeulated other comprehensive loss:

Nine Months Ended September 30,

2012 2011

Tax increment financing bond:

Beginning balance $ (2,309 $ (2,549

Unrealized gains on tax increment financing bond 482 12¢

Ending balance (1,827 (2,414
Cash flow hedges:

Beginning balance (3,42%) (1,105

Unrealized losses on cash flow hedges (10,429 —

Amortization of cash flow hedges 2,25(C (87)

Ending balance (11,599 (1,199
Total accumulated other comprehensive loss $ (13,42 $ (3,606)
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12. Discontinued Operation:

The following table sets forth our operations whiefuired classification as discontinued operations

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,

2012 2011 2012 2011

Rental and other revenues $ 87t $ 5301 $ 10,22 $ 16,21¢
Operating expenses:

Rental property and other expenses 29¢ 2,19¢ 3,76¢€ 6,57
Depreciation and amortization — 1,26¢ 2,00¢ 3,93t
Total operating expenses 298 3,46¢ 5,77¢ 10,50°
Interest expense 35 11¢ 28¢ 364
Income from discontinued operations 547 1,71« 4,062 5,34¢
Net gains on disposition of discontinued operations 22,93¢ 2,57: 29,45¢ 2,57:
Total discontinued operations $ 2348: § 428 $§ 33511 § 7,92

The following table sets forth the major classeasdets and liabilities of our real estate andradksets, net, held for sale and liabili
net, held for sale:

September 30, December 31,

2012 2011
Assets:

Land $ — 3 14,077
Buildings and tenant improvements — 135,01
Less-accumulated depreciation — (32,259
Net real estate assets — 116,83t
Accrued straight-line rents receivable — 6,52(
Deferred leasing costs, net — 811
Prepaid expenses and other assets — 10€
Real estate and other assets, net, held for sale $ — 3 124,27

Liabilities:
Mortgages and notes payable $ — 3 34,301
Accrued expenses and other liabilities — 214
Financing obligations — 1,29¢
Liabilities, net, held for sale $ — 35,81¢

As of September 30, 201, 2here were no real estate and other assetsheldtfor sale. As of December 31, 2011, real estatk othe
assets held for sale, net, included five officepgrties in Nashville, TN, one office property imBilas County, FL, one office property a9@l
residential units in Kansas City, MO and thiméldings in Jackson, MS and Atlanta, GA. All oke#ie properties qualified for discontini
operations.
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(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sire data)

13. Earnings Per Share

The following table sets forth the computation aiz and diluted earnings per share:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended Septembe
September 30, 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011
Earnings per Common Share - basic:
Numerator:
Income from continuing operations $ 1231 % 3951 $ 3510¢ $ 27,20(
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling integeim the Operating Partnership from continuingrapens (547) (159) (1,572) (1,109
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteeeim consolidated affiliates from continuing ogeras (159 (249 (56€) (5549
Dividends on Preferred Stock (627) (627) (1,88)) (3,92¢)
Excess of Preferred Stock redemption/repurchageowes carrying value = = = (1,899
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders 10,98( 2,92¢ 31,09( 19,72«
Income from discontinued operations 23,48: 4,287 33,510 7,921
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteeeim the Operating Partnership from discontinued
operations (1,106 (213 (1,599 (395
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon stockholders 22,377 4,074 31,92¢ 7,52¢
Net income available for common stockholders $ 3335 % 7,00z $ 63,018 $ 27,25
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per Common Shareighted average shar@s (2) 76,59( 72,49: 74,70 72,17¢
Earnings per Common Share - basic:
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders $ 0.1t % 0.0¢ $ 04z $ 0.2¢
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon stockholders 0.2¢ 0.0¢ 0.42 0.1C
Net income available for common stockholders $ 04/ 3 0.1C $ 08/ % 0.3¢
Earnings per Common Share - diluted:
Numerator:
Income from continuing operations $ 1231: $ 3957 $ 3510¢ $ 27,20(
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling integeim consolidated affiliates from continuing ogeras (159 (249 (566€) (559
Dividends on Preferred Stock (627) (627) (1,88)) (3,92¢)
Excess of Preferred Stock redemption/repurchadeoges carrying value — — — (1,89%)
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders before net (income) attributa
to noncontrolling interests in the Operating Pathip 11,52° 3,081 32,66: 20,82t
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon stockholders 23,48: 4,28 33,517 7,921
Net income available for common stockholders bef@te(income) attributable to noncontrolling
interests in the Operating Partnership $ 3501C $ 7,36¢ $ 66,17¢ $  28,74¢
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per Common Sharéghiexl average shargeq (2) 76,59( 72,49: 74,70% 72,17¢
Add:
Stock options using the treasury method 137 13¢ 127 16¢
Noncontrolling interests Common Units 3,76¢ 3,772 3,73¢ 3,78
Denominator for diluted earnings per Common Shaadjusted weighted average shares and assumed
conversiong 1) 80,49¢ 76,40: 78,56¢ 76,127
Earnings per Common Share - diluted:
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders $ 01¢ $ 0.0¢ $ 04z $ 0.2¢
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon stockholders 0.2¢ 0.0¢ 0.4z 0.1C

Net income available for common stockholders $ 04: $ 0.1C $ 08/ $ 0.3¢
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sire data)

13. Earnings Per Share -Continued

(1) There were 0.5 million and 0.4 million optiooststanding during the three months ended Septedihe2012 and 2011 , respectively, @8 million
and 0.3 million options outstanding during the ninenths ended September 30, 2012 and 20&4pectively, that were not included in the cotapar
of diluted earnings per share because the impanthfding such options would be anti-dilutive

(2) Includes all unvested restricted stock sing@dnds on restricted stock are nfamfeitable
14. Segment Informatior

The following table summarizes the rental and otkeenues and net operating income, the primanysing propertylevel performanc
metric which is defined as rental and other reveness rental property and other expenses, for egaittable segment:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011
Rental and Other Revenues(1)

Office:
Atlanta, GA $ 14,07¢ $ 12,167 $ 44,31 $ 34,70
Greenville, SC 3,297 3,617 10,28¢ 10,55¢
Kansas City, MO 4,01t 3,412 11,17¢ 10,37:
Memphis, TN 9,10¢ 9,39: 27,61: 27,80¢
Nashville, TN 14,28¢ 13,79: 42,47 40,10¢
Orlando, FL 2,747 2,67¢ 8,18¢ 7,612
Piedmont Triad, NC 5,60: 4,91z 15,75: 15,54¢
Pittsburgh, PA 9,48t 1,56¢ 27,68: 1,56¢
Raleigh, NC 20,58t 20,047 60,75¢ 59,46:
Richmond, VA 11,85: 13,37t 35,45: 36,42t
Tampa, FL 17,61¢ 17,37( 52,32« 50,80¢
Total Office Segment 112,66¢ 102,33: 336,02: 294,96!

Industrial:

Atlanta, GA 3,21¢ 3,29¢ 9,522 9,98¢
Piedmont Triad, NC 3,147 3,151 9,392 8,95:
Total Industrial Segment 6,357 6,44+ 18,91 18,94:

Retail:
Kansas City, MO 9,18¢ 8,49( 27,18t 25,59(
Total Retail Segment 9,18¢ 8,49( 27,18¢ 25,59(
Total Rental and Other Revenues $ 12821« § 117,26! § 382,12(  § 339,49
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sire data)

14. Segment Information - Continued

Net Operating Income: (1)
Office:
Atlanta, GA
Greenville, SC
Kansas City, MO
Memphis, TN
Nashville, TN
Orlando, FL
Piedmont Triad, NC
Pittsburgh, PA
Raleigh, NC
Richmond, VA
Tampa, FL
Total Office Segment
Industrial:
Atlanta, GA
Piedmont Triad, NC
Total Industrial Segment
Retail:
Kansas City, MO
Total Retail Segment
Total Net Operating Income

Reconciliation to income from continuing operationsbefore disposition of property,
condominiums and investments in unconsolidated affates and equity in earnings of

unconsolidated affiliates:
Depreciation and amortization
Impairments of assets held for use
General and administrative
Interest expense

Other income

Income from continuing operations before dispositia of property, condominiums and
investments in unconsolidated affiliates and equitjn earnings of unconsolidated affiliates $ 10,90¢

(1) Net of discontinued operatiol
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Three Months Ended

Nine Months Ended

September 30, September 30,

2012 2011 2012 2011
8,70 $ 7,40 $ 2821t $ 21,55
1,807 2,09¢ 5,98¢ 6,23¢
2,54, 2,00( 7,064 6,25¢
5,381 5,16¢ 16,23 15,29’
9,77 9,27: 29,26: 27,27"
1,36¢ 1,37¢ 4,21« 3,82¢
3,33( 2,89t 9,78( 9,94«
4,95; 88¢ 13,85¢ 88¢
13,90° 13,90( 42,04t 41,38¢
7,86¢ 7,767 24,28: 23,85:
11,07% 10,78¢ 32,72: 31,47¢
70,71« 63,55 213,66t 187,99:
2,331 2,40¢ 6,93¢ 7,415
2,257 2,251 6,852 6,58
4,58¢ 4,657 13,78¢ 13,99¢
5,67¢ 5,02¢ 16,53« 15,14¢
5,67¢ 5,02¢ 16,53« 15,14¢
80,98: 73,23¢ 243,98t 217,13¢
(38,657 (35,05) (115,759 (99,659
— (2,429) — (2,429
(9,725 (12,219 (28,299 (27,989
(23,619 (24,277) (72,667) (71,47¢)
1,91¢ 1,50t 4,91C 5,25
$ 77¢ $ 32,18 $ 20,84:
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sire data)

15. Subsequent Event

On October 11, 2012 , we modified our $200.0 millidive year unsecured bank term loan, which was origiredtyeduled to mature
February 2016 . The loan is now scheduled to matudanuary 2018nd the interest rate was reduced from LIBOR pR 2asis points
LIBOR plus 165 basis points. We incurred $0.9 millof deferred financing fees in connection with thedification, which will be amortize
along with existing unamortized deferred loan feesr the remaining term of the new loan. Proceedls twonew participants, aggregat
$35.0 million , were used to reduce amounts oudita@nunder our revolving credit facility. Twaf the original participants, which still hold
aggregate $35.0 million of the principal balancdemthe original term loan, will be fully paid afh or before February 25, 2013 .

On October 18, 2012 , we acquired an additionalica¢ffice property in Greensboro, NC for a puredgrice of $ 13.3 million This
purchase price includes the assumption of secuebtiekpected to be recorded at fair value of $¥ilBon , with an effective interest rate
4.06% , including amortization of deferred finargioosts. This debt matures in August 2014 . We exjmeexpense approximately$l
million of acquisition costs related to this tractsan.
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(Unaudited and in thousands, except unit and pgidate)

September 30, December 31,

2012 2011
Assets:
Real estate assets, at cost:
Land $ 371,47¢ % 355,69:
Buildings and tenant improvements 3,200,35! 3,009,15!
Development in process 11,56¢ —
Land held for development 102,48: 105,20t
3,685,87 3,470,05!
Less-accumulated depreciation (926,66%) (869,04¢)
Net real estate assets 2,759,20: 2,601,00
For-sale residential condominiums 1,23¢ 4,751
Real estate and other assets, net, held for sale — 124,27:
Cash and cash equivalents 9,17¢ 11,15
Restricted cash 21,57¢ 26,66¢
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $3,437 $B&48, respectively 21,14« 30,09
Mortgages and notes receivable, net of allowan&2af and $61, respectively 16,94: 18,60(
Accrued straight-line rents receivable, net ofwalace of $1,076 and $1,294, respectively 112,66( 99,49(
Investments in and advances to unconsolidate deéfd 77,36¢ 99,29¢
Deferred financing and leasing costs, net of acdated amortization of $73,579 and $62,319, respelsti 149,17( 127,77
Prepaid expenses and other assets, net of accechalawortization of $12,585 and $15,089, respegtivel 40,41( 36,78:
Total Assets $ 3,20888 $ 3,179,88
Liabilities, Redeemable Operating Partnership Unitsand Equity:
Mortgages and notes payable $ 1,77855 $ 1,868,901
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheiitiiedbil 151,96: 148,60
Financing obligations 27,79: 30,15(
Liabilities, net, held for sale — 35,81¢
Total Liabilities 1,958,30! 2,083,47.
Commitments and contingencies
Redeemable Operating Partnership Units:
Common Units, 3,775,016 and 3,729,518 outstandespectively 123,14: 110,65!
Series A Preferred Units (liquidation preferencéd®0 per unit), 29,077 units issued and outstanding 29,071 29,077
Total Redeemable Operating Partnership Units 152,21¢ 139,73:
Equity:
Common Units:
General partner Common Units, 818,961 and 759,68tanding, respectively 11,06¢ 9,57t
Limited partner Common Units, 77,302,152 and 71,2049 outstanding, respectively 1,096,171 948,18
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (13,42¢) (5,739
Noncontrolling interests in consolidated affiliates 4,54¢ 4,64¢
Total Equity 1,098,36: 956,67
Total Liabilities, Redeemable Operating Partnersbhijts and Equity $ 320883 $ 3,179,88

See accompanying notes to consolidated financ#tistents.
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

Consolidated Statements of Income

(Unaudited and in thousands, except per unit anspunt

Rental and other revenues

Operating expenses:
Rental property and other expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Impairments of real estate assets
General and administrative

Total operating expenses

Interest expense:
Contractual
Amortization of deferred financing costs

Financing obligations

Other income:
Interest and other income

Losses on debt extinguishment

Income from continuing operations before dispositio of property, condominiums and investments in

unconsolidated affiliates and equity in earnings ofinconsolidated affiliates
Gains on disposition of property
Gains/(losses) on for-sale residential condominiums
Gains on disposition of investments in unconsodidatffiliates
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates
Income from continuing operations
Discontinued operations:
Income from discontinued operations

Net gains on disposition of discontinued operations

Net income
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteseim consolidated affiliates
Distributions on Preferred Units
Excess of Preferred Unit redemption/repurchasemaestcarrying value
Net income available for common unitholders
Earnings per Common Unit — basic:
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon unitholders
Net income available for common unitholders
Weighted average Common Units outstanding — basic
Earnings per Common Unit — diluted:
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon unitholders
Net income available for common unitholders
Weighted average Common Units outstanding — diluted
Distributions declared per Common Unit
Net income available for common unitholders:
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders

Income from discontinued operations available fanmon unitholders

Three Months Ended

Nine Months Ended

September 30, September 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011
128,21: $ 117,26 382,12(  $ 339,49

47,15¢ 43,96: 137,93 122,37¢
38,65 35,05 115,75! 99,65¢
— 2,42¢ — 2,42¢
9,79¢ 12,28( 28,49: 27,96¢
95,60¢ 93,72! 282,18t 252,42¢
22,91( 23,26¢ 70,30¢ 68,44+
907 80€ 2,70¢ 2,44¢
(20%) 201 (357) 584
23,61: 24,27 72,66 71,47¢
1,91¢ 1,50¢ 5,88 5,27
— — 979 (29
1,91¢ 1,50¢ 4,91( 5,25
10,90¢ 77¢€ 32,18« 20,84¢
— 262 — 462

80 (47€) 25E (322

— 2,28: — 2,28:
1,32¢ 1,11z 2,67¢ 3,94%
12,317 3,951 35,11¢ 27,21
547 1,71« 4,06: 5,34¢
22,93¢ 2,57% 29,45¢ 2,57%
23,48 4,28 33,510 7,921
35,80( 8,24¢ 68,63t 35,13¢
(159) (249) (56€) (554)
(627) (627) (1,88)) (3,920
— — — (1,895
35,01« $ 7,36¢ 66,18¢ $ 28,75¢
0.1t % 0.04 04z $ 0.2¢
0.2¢ 0.0¢€ 0.4: 0.1C
044 $ 0.1C 0.8t $ 0.3¢
79,94¢ 75,85¢ 78,03: 75,54¢
0.1t % 0.04 04z $ 0.2¢
0.2¢ 0.0¢€ 0.42 0.1C
04z % 0.1C 08t $ 0.3¢
80,08¢ 75,99: 78,15¢ 75,71¢
0.42t $ 0.42¢ 127 $ 1.27¢
11,53 % 3,081 32,67 $ 20,83
23,48 4,287 33,517 7,921




Net income available for common unitholders $ 3501+ $ 7366 $ 66,18 $ 28,75¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsdistents.
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011
Comprehensive income/(loss):
Net income $ 3580 $ 824 $ 68,635 $ 3513
Other comprehensive income/(loss):
Unrealized gains/(losses) on tax increment finapbiond (203) 60C 482 12¢
Unrealized losses on cash flow hedges (3,337) — (10,429 —
Amortization of cash flow hedges 791 (30) 2,25( (87)
Total other comprehensive income/(loss) (2,647 57C (7,692 42
Total comprehensive income $ 33,15¢ $ 881« $ 6094: $ 3517¢
Less-comprehensive (income) attributable to nomodimg interests (159 (249 (56€) (5549)
Comprehensive income attributable to the Operaiagnership $ 3299« § 856t $ 60370 $ 34,62

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgistents.
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Balance at December 31, 2011
Issuances of Common Units, net
Distributions paid on Common Units
Distributions paid on Preferred Units

Share-based compensation expense

HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
Consolidated Statements of Capital

(Unaudited and in thousands, except unit amounts)

Common Units

Noncontrolling

Distributions to noncontrolling interests in coridated affiliates — —

Adjustment of Redeemable Common Units to fair valoe
contributions/distributions from/to the GeneraltRar (22¢) (12,68¢)

Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteéssim consolidated

affiliates
Comprehensive income/(loss):

Net income

Other comprehensive loss
Total comprehensive income
Balance at September 30, 2012

Balance at December 31, 2010
Issuances of Common Units, net
Distributions paid on Common Units

Distributions paid on Preferred Units

Share-based compensation expense

Distributions to noncontrolling interests in conidated affiliates — —

Adjustment of Redeemable Common Units to fair valoe
contributions/distributions from/to the GeneraltRar 144 14,09t

Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteéssi® consolidated

affiliates
Comprehensive income/(loss):
Net income
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income

Balance at September 30, 2011

General Limited Accumulated Interests in
Partners’ Partners’ Other Consolidated Total Partners’
Capital Capital Comprehensive Loss Affiliates Capital
$ 9,57t $ 948,18 $ (5,739 4,646 $ 956,67+
1,89( 187,08: — — 188,97¢
(999 (98,340 == == (99,339
(19 (1,867 — — (1,88))
65 6,39¢ = = 6,46
— (66%) (66%)
== == (12,819
(6) (560 — 56¢€ —
68¢€ 67,94¢ — — 68,63¢
— = (7,699 = (7,699
60,94
$ 11,06¢ $ 1,096,171 $ (13,42¢) 454¢ $ 1,098,36.
Common Units Noncontrolling
é?tr:grasl’ Fl'_z:lrr?r!ls:js Accgtmr#elra el Clgfsrgl?(lizigd Total Partners’
Capital Capital Comprehensive Loss Affiliates Capital
$ 10,04« % 994,61( $ (3,649 4,46(C $ 1,005,46!
22C 21,82¢ — — 22,04:
(962) (95,239 = = (96,19
(39 (3,887 — — (3,920
48 4,728 = = 4,771
— (397 (397
= = 14,23¢
C) (54¢) — 554 —
351 34,78 — — 35,13:¢
— — 42 — 42
35,17t
$ 9,80C $ 970,36: $ (3,606 4,62: $ 981,18(

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Operating activities:

Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of lease incentives and acquisitiolated intangible assets and liabilities
Share-based compensation expense
Allowance for losses on accounts and accrued sirdiite rents receivable
Amortization of deferred financing costs
Amortization of cash flow hedges
Impairments of real estate assets
Losses on debt extinguishment
Net gains on disposition of property
(Gains)/losses on for-sale residential condominiums
Gains on disposition of investments in unconsodidatffiliates
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates
Changes in financing obligations
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated &ifiés
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Accrued straight-line rents receivable
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheiitiebil
Net cash provided by operating activities
Investing activities:
Investments in acquired real estate and relatesigible assets, net of cash acquired
Investments in development in process
Investments in tenant improvements and deferresirigaosts
Investments in building improvements
Net proceeds from disposition of real estate assets
Net proceeds from disposition of for-sale resid#r@dondominiums
Proceeds from disposition of investments in unchdated affiliates
Distributions of capital from unconsolidated aties
Repayments of mortgages and notes receivable
Investments in and advances to unconsolidatedeaéf
Changes in restricted cash and other investingiaes
Net cash used in investing activities
Financing activities:
Distributions on Common Units
Redemptions/repurchases of Preferred Units
Distributions on Preferred Units
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in coridated affiliates
Proceeds from the issuance of Common Units
Costs paid for the issuance of Common Units
Repurchase of units related to tax withholdings
Borrowings on revolving credit facility

Repayments of revolving credit facility

Rnrrnwinns nn martnanes and nntec naw.

Nine Months Ended September 30,

2012 2011
68,63t 35,13¢
117,76 103,59
35¢ 1,347
6,46¢ 4,771
1,23¢ 1,58¢
2,70¢ 2,44¢
2,25( (87)
— 2,42¢
973 24
(29,45 (3,039
(258) 32z
— (2,28
(2,679 (3,949
(1,010 (339
3,23( 3,38¢
5,31( (3,499
(3,216 (542)
(13,609 (9,280)
(20,759 4,11¢
137,95: 136,15:
(158,201 (75,510)
(5,39) (5,83
(61,829 (59,699
(27,229 (9,529
152,45 16,53
3,76¢ 2,77(
= 4,75¢
1,03¢ 1,30
1,651 33¢
(3,929) (39,669
2,90¢ (15,599
(94,75() (180,12)
(99,339 (96,19)
= (52,519
(1,88 (3,926
(669) (391
191,66 22,04:
(2,745 =
(2,249) —
219,80( 285,40
(492,80) (150,401
2285 N0t 200 NNt



Repayments of mortgages and notes payable

Payments on financing obligations

Additions to deferred financing costs and othearfficing activities

Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities

(77,26 (156,605)

(1,316 —

(3,39 (6,615)

(45,179 40,79;

$ (1,979 (3,175

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows - Continued

(Unaudited and in thousands)

Nine Months Ended Septembe

30,
2012 2011
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents $ @a,97) $ (3,17%)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the gherio 11,15 14,19¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period $ 917« $ 11,02

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Nine Months Ended September 30,
2012 2011

Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capitalized $ 72,79¢  $ 69,32:

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing anéth&incing activities:

Nine Months Ended September 30,

2012 2011
Unrealized losses on cash flow hedges $ (10,429 % =
Changes in accrued capital expenditures 1,82¢ 3,70
Write-off of fully depreciated real estate assets 36,91¢ 39,03¢
Write-off of fully amortized deferred financing afehsing costs 14,18¢ 13,68:
Unrealized gains/(losses) on marketable secunfie®n-qualified deferred compensation plan 31C (3549)
Adjustment of Redeemable Common Units to fair value 10,187 (14,849
Unrealized gains on tax increment financing bond 482 12¢
Assumption of mortgages and notes payable relatadduisition activities — 192,36
Reduction of advances to unconsolidated affiliaédsted to acquisition activities 26,00( —
Issuances of Common Units to acquire real estaetas 2,29¢ —

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgistents.
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2012
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per uit data)
(Unaudited)

1. Description of Business and Significant Accating Policies
Description of Business

Highwoods Properties, Inc., together with its cdiasded subsidiaries (the “Company”), is a fulltegrated, self-administered and self-
managed equity real estate investment trust (“REtdt provides leasing, management, developmenstauction and other custometatec
services for its properties and for third parti#de Company conducts virtually all of its activitithrough Highwoods Realty Limit
Partnership (the “Operating Partnership”). At Seyder 30, 2012 , the Company and/or the Operatimtn&ship wholly owned: 299 in-
service office, industrial and retail propertiesmprising 29.0 million square feet; five for-salkesidential condominiums; 584cres c
undeveloped land suitable for future developmeiiylach 518 acres are considered core assets; mndffice property under development.

The Company is the sole general partner of the @iogr Partnership. At September 30, 201Be Company owned all of the Prefel
Units and 78.1 million , or 95.4% , of the Commonits in the Operating Partnership. Limited partnénsluding one officer andwo
directors of the Company, own the remaining 3.diomlCommon Units. In the event the Company issues star€ommon Stock, the
proceeds are contributed to the Operating Partipeishexchange for additional Common Units. Gerlgrahe Operating Partnership
required to redeem each Common Unit at the reqpfebie holder thereof for cash equal to the valien® share of the CompassyCommol
Stock, $ 0.01 par value, based on the averageeofrtirket price for the 1@ading days immediately preceding the notice adtsuct
redemption, provided that the Company at its opti@ay elect to acquire any such Common Units preskfur redemption for cash or ¢
share of Common Stock. The Common Units owned byGbmpany are not redeemable. During the nine nsarided September 30, 2012
the Company redeemed 21,366 Common Units for anlikeber of shares of Common Stock and issued 6&;86d@mon Units to acquire re
estate assets. As a result of this activity, thegrgage of Common Units owned by the Company as&é from 95.1% daecember 31, 20:
to 95.4% at September 30, 2012 .

Common Stock Offerings

The Company has entered into equity sales agreemétft various financial institutions to offer aedll, from time to time, shares of
Common Stock by means of ordinary brokers' tranmagton the New York Stock Exchange or otherwismatket prices prevailing at t
time of sale, at prices related to prevailing magces or at negotiated prices or as otherwiseaagwith any of the institutions. During
three and nine months ended September 30, 2082CGdmpany issued 2,867,768 and 5,490st&res, respectively, of Common Stock u
these agreements at an average gross sales p$c83022 and $ 33.38er share, respectively, raising net proceedst afies commissio
and expenses, of $ 93.8 million and $ 180.2 millioespectively.

Basis of Presentation

Our Consolidated Financial Statements are preparednformity with accounting principles generadlgcepted in the United States
America (“GAAP”). Our Consolidated Balance SheeDacember 31, 201Was revised from previously reported amounts ttecefin rea
estate and other assets, net, held for sale thogenies which qualified as held for sale durihg three months ended September 30, 2012
Our Consolidated Statements of Income for the tlae@& nine months ended September 30, 20&de revised from previously repor
amounts to reflect in discontinued operations tperations for those properties that qualified f@scdntinued operations. Prior per
amounts related to capital expenditures in our Glisteted Statements of Cash Flows have been disggtgd to conform to the current pe
presentation.

Our Consolidated Financial Statements include whoWned subsidiaries and those entities in whichhaee the controlling financi
interest. All intercompany transactions and acceumve been eliminated. At September 30, 2012 aacember 31, 2011 we has
involvement with no entities that we concluded éoviariable interest entities.
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1. Description of Business and Significant Accaiing Policies — Continued

The unaudited interim consolidated financial stanta and accompanying unaudited consolidated fiabimformation, in the opinion
management, contain all adjustments (including mbmexcurring accruals) necessary for a fair predent of our financial position, results
operations and cash flows. We have omitted certaias and other information from the interim coigaiked financial statements presente
this Quarterly Report on Form 1D-as permitted by SEC rules and regulations. Tisesolidated Financial Statements should be re
conjunction with our 2011 Annual Report on FormKLO-

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statemémtaccordance with GAAP requires us to make edémand assumptions that af
the amounts reported in the consolidated finarst&tements and accompanying notes. Actual resulil differ from those estimates.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

As a result of adopting certain new or amended @uibog pronouncements in the first quarter of 204@,have enhanced our disclos
of assets and liabilities measured at fair valu @acted to continue use of credit valuation adjesits on a net basis by counterparty as
of the calculation to determine the fair value of derivatives. Our disclosures now include: (gnficant transfers between Levels 1 and
the fair value hierarchy, if any; (2) additionalagtitative and qualitative information regarding fealue measurements categorized as Le
of the fair value hierarchy; and (3) the hierarchgssification for items whose fair value is notarsled on our Consolidated Balance St
but was disclosed previously in our Notes to Cadstéd Financial Statements. Additionally, we havesented comprehensive income
separate financial statement entitied ConsolidStatements of Comprehensive Income.

2. Real Estate Assets
Acquisitions

During the third quarter of 2012 , we acquired ¢hpeoperties for a total purchase price of $161illam , consisting of (1) &92,00(
square foot office property in Atlanta, GA for $418 million and (2) two medical office properties Greensboro, NC for $ 16.3 millian
which included the issuance of 66,864 Common Uanii contingent consideration with fair value at aleguisition date of $0.7 millionWe
expensed approximately $0.7 milliaf acquisition costs related to these transactidie assets acquired and liabilities assumed
recorded at fair value as determined by managetresed on information available at the acquisitiatedand on current assumptions &
future operations.

The following table sets forth a summary of theetsacquired and liabilities assumed in the actipisdf the office property in Atlant
GA discussed above:

Total
Purchase Price
Allocation
Real estate assets $ 135,12¢
Acquisition-related intangible assets (in defeffineincing and leasing costs) 21,631
Acquisition-related below market lease liabilit{@s accounts payable, accrued expenses and c#dities) (11,87
Total allocation $ 144,89(
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2. Real Estate Assets - Continued

During the third quarter of 2011, we acquired a-buxilding, 1,540,000 square foot office complexXittsburgh, PA and a 503,08Quar:
foot office building in Atlanta, GA for a purchapece of $188.5 million and $78.3 million , respgety.

The following table sets forth our rental and otlevenues and net income, adjusted for intereseresep and depreciation ¢
amortization related to purchase price allocatiang acquisition costs assuming: (1) the 492,00@rgqgfoot office building in Atlanta, G
was acquired on January 1, 2011, with proformasddjents being included in the three and nine moattised September 30, 2012 and
and (2) the office complex in Pittsburgh, PA ane 893,000 square foot office building in AtlantaA &ere acquired on January 1, 2010,
proforma adjustments being included in the threlerdne months ended September 30, 2011.

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011
Proforma rental and other revenues $ 132,63 $ 132,26¢ $ 395,16. $ 385,24t
Proforma net income $ 3576¢ $ 7,626 $ 6853 $ 33,28(
Proforma earnings per share - basic $ 044 % 0.0¢ $ 0.8t % 0.3¢€
Proforma earnings per share - diluted $ 044 % 0.0¢ $ 0.8t $ 0.3¢

During the second quarter of 2012 , we also acduard78,30Gquare foot office property in Cary, NC from our BLjoint venture fa
an agreed upon value of $26.0 million by reducheghialance of the advance due to us from the yeinture.

Dispositions
During the third quarter of 2012 , we sold:
» an office property in Kansas City, MO for $ @fillion and recorded gain on disposition of diséonéd operations of $ 1.9 millian
» five office buildings in Nashville, TN for $ 401 million and recorded gain on disposition of disitoued operations of $ 7.0 millian

» three buildings in Jackson, MS and Atlanta, @A $ 86.5 millionand recorded gain on disposition of discontinueeragons of .
14.0 million .

During the second quarter of 2012 , we sold arceffiroperty in Pinellas County, FL for gross pratseef $9.5 millionand recorded ga
on disposition of discontinued operations of $1ilion related to this disposition.

During the first quarter of 2012, we sold 96 vacaarital residential units in Kansas City, MO fopogg proceeds of $11.0 milliaanc
recorded gain on disposition of discontinued openatof $5.1 million related to this disposition.
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3. Mortgages and Notes Receivable

The following table sets forth our mortgages antésoeceivable:

September 30, December 31,

2012 2011
Seller financing (first mortgages) $ 15,85: $ 17,18(
Less allowance — —
15,85:¢ 17,18(
Promissory notes 1,301 1,481
Less allowance (21)) (61)
1,09( 1,42(
Mortgages and notes receivable, net $ 16,941 § 18,60(

Our mortgages and notes receivable consist priynafikeller financing issued in conjunction withaaisposition transactions in 20.
This seller financing is evidenced by first mortgagecured by the assignment of rents and the lyindereal estate assets. We evaluatt
collectability of the receivables by monitoring tleasing statistics and market fundamentals ofettessets. As of September 30, 201R¢
payments on both mortgages receivable were cuaraghthere were no other indications of impairmenthe receivables. We may be requ
to take impairment charges in the future if anthtoextent the underlying collateral diminishesatue.

The following table sets forth our notes receivalewance, which relates only to promissory notes:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011
Beginning notes receivable allowance $ 118 $ 617 $ 61 $ 86¢
Bad debt expense — — — 184
Recoveries/write-offs/other 93 (72) 15C (507)
Total notes receivable allowance $ 211 § 54t § 211 § 54t
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4. Investments in and Advances to Affiliates
Unconsolidated Affiliates
We have equity interests of up to 50.@9various joint ventures with unrelated third estand a secured debt interest in one of -

joint ventures, as described below. The followiaglé sets forth the combined, summarized inconmterstnts for our unconsolidated jc
ventures on the purchase accounting basis:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011
Income Statements:
Rental and other revenues $ 24,06 $ 24618 $ 7291 $ 72,57¢
Expenses:
Rental property and other expenses 11,02« 10,23¢ 33,90: 31,76¢
Depreciation and amortization 6,04< 6,437 17,90¢ 18,73¢
Impairments of real estate assets — — 7,18( —
Interest expense 4,817 5,80z 15,58: 17,31(
Total expenses 21,88¢ 22,47¢ 74,56¢ 67,81:
Income/(loss) before disposition of properties 2,17 2,14( (1,659 4,76
Gains on disposition of properties — — 6,27¢ —
Net income $ 2177 $ 2,14C $ 4,62: $ 4,76F
Our share of:
Depreciation and amortization of real estate assets $ 198 $ 2,02 $ 568 $ 6,07¢
Impairments of real estate assets $ — % — $ 100 % —
Interest expense $ 1,75¢ $ 194 $ 553¢ $ 6,09t
Net income $ 92§ 448 $ 1,281 $ 2,14
Our share of net income $ 92§ 448 $ 1,281 $ 2,14
Adjustments for management and other fees 40¢ 665 1,39¢ 1,80:
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates $ 132 § 1118 § 267¢ § 3,94t

During the second quarter of 2011, we provided38.8 million interesbnly secured loan to our DLF | joint venture thagmally was
scheduled to mature in March 2012he loan bears interest at LIBOR plus 500 bagistg. The maturity date of the loan has been ebddric
December 31, 2012 . In the second quarter of 20th2 putstanding balance of the loan was reducekl 18.0 millionas a result of ol
acquisition of an office property from the jointntare. We recorded interest income from this loaimierest and other income $8.1 millior
and $0.5 million during the three months ended &aper 30, 2012 and 2011 , respectively, and $0l&mand $0.8 million during thaine
months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011 , resggcti

During the second quarter of 2012 , our DLF Il jokenture obtained a $50.0 million , thrgeear secured mortgage loan from a t
party lender, bearing a fixed interest rate of 3.&%$39.1 millionof the loan and a floating interest rate of LIBOR$250 basis points
$10.9 million of the loan, which was used by thiaf@enture to repay a secured loan at maturity tioird party lender.

During the first quarter of 2012, we recorded $hillion as our share of impairments of real estatsets on twoffice properties in ol
DLF | joint venture, due to a decline in projectectupancy and a change in the assumed holdingdpefithose assets, which reduced
expected future cash flows from the properties.
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4. Investments in and Advances to Affiliates - @htinued
Consolidated Affiliates

During the third quarter of 2012 , we provided eeth-year, $ 20.8 million interestily secured loan to our Harborview Plaza |
venture that is scheduled to mature in Septemb®s 2@hich the joint venture used to repay a secunad bkt maturity to a third party lenc

This new loan bears interest at LIBOR plus 500dpsints, subject to a LIBOR floor of 0.5% .

5. Intangible Assets and Below Market Lease Lidlities

The following table sets forth total intangible etssand acquisitiorelated below market lease liabilities, net of asalated amortizatior

September 30, December 31,
2012 2011
Assets:

Deferred financing costs $ 19,95 $ 18,04«
Less accumulated amortization (8,11%) (5,797
11,837 12,247
Deferred leasing costs (including lease incentare$ acquisition-related intangible assets) 202,79° 172,04¢
Less accumulated amortization (65,464 (56,529
137,33: 115,52
Deferred financing and leasing costs, net $ 149,17 $ 127,77-

Liabilities (in accounts payable, accrued expensemsd other liabilities):
Acquisition-related below market lease liabilities $ 28,01: $ 16,44
Less accumulated amortization (2,55¢) 971
$ 25,45¢ % 15,47(

The following table sets forth amortization of inggble assets and acquisition-related below mdeeesste liabilities:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011
Amortization of deferred financing costs $ 907 $ 80 $ 2,70¢ $ 2,44¢
Amortization of deferred leasing costs and acquisitelated intangible assets (in depreciation and
amortization) $ 683 $ 518 $ 2054: $ 13,94¢
Amortization of lease incentives (in rental andestrevenues) $ 39 % 36 $ 107t $ 1,01C
Amortization of acquisition-related intangible assgn rental and other revenues) $ 43: % 23¢ $ 1,027 % 617
Amortization of acquisition-related intangible assgn rental property and other expenses) $ 4€ $ — 3 46 % —
Amortization of acquisition-related below markedde liabilities (in rental and other revenues)  $ 647 % 230) $ (1,749 % (280)
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Intangible Assets and Below Market Lease Lidlities - Continued

The following table sets forth scheduled future dimation of intangible assets and below markesédzbilities:

Amortization
of Deferred

Leasing Costs

Amortization of

Amortization

and Acquisition- Amortization Acquisition- of Acquisition-
Related Amortization of Acquisition- Related Related Below
Amortization Intangible Assets of Lease Related Intangible Assets Market Lease
of Deferred (in Depreciation Incentives (in Intangible Assets (in Rental Liabilities (in
Financing and Rental and Other  (in Rental and Property and Rental and Other
Costs Amortization) Revenues) Other Revenues) Other Expenses) Revenues)
October 1 through December 31, 2012 $ 1,06¢ $ 7,02C $ 34¢ % 29: % 14C % (802)
2013 3,381 25,08( 1,28¢ 991 55z (3,16¢)
2014 3,00¢ 21,19( 1,13¢ 734 G55 (3,100
2015 2,39 17,21¢ 90z 54¢ 558 (2,899
2016 1,02 14,04 70¢€ 48¢ 55z (2,609
Thereafter 95¢ 37,29: 2,53¢ 96¢ 2,19¢ (12,88¢)
$ 11,837 $ 121,84! $ 6,91t $ 4,028 % 454¢ $ (25,459
Weighted average remaining amortization
periods as of September 30, 2012 (in
3.€ 7.1 7.€ 5.€ 8.2 9.¢

years)

The following table sets forth the intangible assetquired and
activity:

below market lease liabilities asslias a result

of 2012 acquisil

Amount recorded from acquisition activity

Weighted average remaining amortization periody€ars)

6. Mortgages and Notes Payable

The following table sets forth our mortgages antkagayable:

Secured indebtedness
Unsecured indebtedness

Total mortgages and notes payable

Above Market In-Place Tax Below
Lease Lease Abatement Market
Intangible Intangible Intangible Lease
Assets Assets Assets Liabilities
$ 1,28 $ 21,47¢ $ 459 $ (11,87H
5.2 9.2 8.2 11.c

September 30, December 31,

2012 2011

$ 685,39( $ 715,74

1,093,16! 1,153,16.

$ 1,778,55! $ 1,868,90!

At September 30, 2012our secured mortgage loans were secured by sé&gteeassets with an aggregate undepreciated lao& of ¢

1,148.2 million .
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6. Mortgages and Notes Payable - Continued

Our $ 475.0 million unsecured revolving credit faigiis scheduled to mature on July 27, 204 includes an accordion feature
allows for an additional $ 75.0 millioof borrowing capacity subject to additional lendemmitments. Assuming no defaults have occu
we have an option to extend the maturity for anitaaithl year. The interest rate at our current itreatings is LIBOR plus 150 basis poi
and the annual facility fee is 35 basis points. irfterest rate and facility fee are based on tlghdri of the publicly announced ratings fi
Moody's Investors Service or Standard & Poor'srigatiServices. We use our revolving credit facilityworking capital purposes and for
shortterm funding of our development and acquisitiorivétgt and, in certain instances, the repaymenttbeodebt. The continued ability
borrow under the revolving credit facility allows to quickly capitalize on strategic opportuni@gshort-term interest rates. There ws89%
million and $ 59.5 million outstanding under ouvatring credit facility at September 30, 2012 anck@ber 22, 2012 respectively. At bot
September 30, 2012 and October 22, 2012 , we h@adl $nillion of outstanding letters of credit, which reduces #wailability on ou
revolving credit facility. As a result, the unuseapacity of our revolving credit facility at Septieen 30, 2012 and October 22, 2043as ¢
385.9 million and $ 415.4 million , respectively.

During the third quarter of 2012 , we paid down &neount outstanding under our variable rate coastmi loan by $34.3 million .

During the second quarter of 2012 , we repurch&3@dl million principal amount of unsecured notae March 201'bearing interest «
5.85% for a purchase price of 107.5% of par valMle.recorded $1.0 million of loss on debt extingmst related to this repurchase.

During the first quarter of 2012, we obtained a%R2million , sevenyear unsecured bank term loan bearing interestBOR plus 19
basis points. This floating interest rate effediiweas fixed by the interest rate swaps discuseddate 7. The proceeds were used to pa
amounts then outstanding under our revolving craditity.

We are currently in compliance with the debt covesand other requirements with respect to ourtanting debt.

7. Derivative Financial Instruments

We have six floating-to-fixed interest rate swaps $even -year periods each with respect to aneggtg of $225.0 million LIBOR-
based borrowings. These swaps effectively fix thdeulying LIBOR rate at a weighted average of 1%78The counterparties under
swaps are major financial institutions. The swapeaments contain a provision whereby if we defaaltany of our indebtedness, if gre
than $ 10.0 milliorand that results in repayment of such indebtedbesg), or becoming capable of being accelerateth&yender, then v
could also be declared in default on our derivatibligations. These swaps have been designatendaara being accounted for as cash
hedges with changes in fair value recorded in otloenprehensive income each reporting period. Na gailoss was recognized relatet
hedge ineffectiveness or to amounts excluded frifettiveness testing on our cash flow hedges dutiegnine months endeskeptember 3
2012 . As of September 30, 2012 , we have not gdaatg collateral related to our interest rate siiadplity.

Amounts reported in accumulated other comprehensis® ("AOCL") related to derivatives will be res$ified to interest expense
interest payments are made on our variaate-debt. During the period from October 1, 20¥@ugh September 30, 2013, we estimate
$3.3 million will be reclassified as an increasénterest expense.

The following table sets forth the fair value ofr @erivative instruments:

September 30, December 31,

2012 2011
Liability Derivatives:
Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges in acotsipayable, accrued expenses and other liabilities
Interest rate swaps $ 10,27: $ 2,20z
7. Derivative Financial Instruments - Continued
The following table sets forth the effect of ouslkedlow hedges on AOCL and interest expense:
Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

September 30, September 30,




2012 2011 2012 2011

Derivatives Designated as Cash Flow Hedges:
Amount of unrealized losses recognized in AOCL onativatives (effective portion):
Interest rate swaps $ (333) $ — $ (10,429 % —

Amount of (gains)/losses reclassified out of AOCLInto contractual interest expense
(effective portion):

Interest rate swaps $ 791 % (3C) $ 2,25C % (87)

8. Noncontrolling Interests
Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Affiliates

At September 30, 2012 , noncontrolling interestgansolidated affiliates relates to our joint vestpartner's 50.0%nterest in offic
properties located in Richmond, VA. Our joint vengtpartner is an unrelated third party.

9. Disclosure About Fair Value of Financial Instrument

The following summarizes the three levels of infghts we use to measure fair value, as well asitlsets and liabilities that we recogi
at fair value using those levels of inputs.

Level 1. Quoted prices in active markets for identicabéssr liabilities.

Our Level 1 assets are investments in marketalderisies that we use to pay benefits under our quelified deferred compensat
plan. Our Level 1 liability is our non-qualified féered compensation obligation.

Level 2.0bservable inputs other than Level 1 prices, ssofuated prices for similar assets or liabilitiggpted prices in markets that
not active; or other inputs that are observableaor be corroborated by observable market dataufostantially the full term of the relai
assets or liabilities.

Our Level 2 asset is the fair value of our mortgagad notes receivable, which was estimated byinbeme approach utilizir
contractual cash flows and markesed interest rates to approximate the priceviioald be paid in an orderly transaction betweenkei
participants.

Our Level 2 liabilities include (1) the fair valeé our mortgages and notes payable, which was astiirby the income approach utiliz
contractual cash flows and markesed interest rates to approximate the priceviioald be paid in an orderly transaction betweenkei
participants and (2) interest rate swaps whosevédire is determined using the market standard odelbgy of netting the discounted fut
fixed cash receipts and the discounted expectadblarcash payments. The variable cash paymemsrdhterest rate swaps are based o
expectation of future LIBOR interest rates (forwanaves) derived from observed market LIBOR interage curves. In addition, cre
valuation adjustments are incorporated in theviaiues to account for potential nonperformance, tisit were concluded to not be signific
inputs to the calculation for the periods presented

Level 3. Unobservable inputs that are supported by littlen@market activity and that are significant to fae value of the assets
liabilities.
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9. Disclosure About Fair Value of Financial Instrument - Continued

Our Level 3 assets include our tax increment fiframdond, which is not routinely traded but whosaé #alue is determined by t
income approach utilizing contractual cash flowd amarketbased interest rates to estimate the projectedngtiten value based on quo
bid/ask prices for similar unrated municipal boadsl, if any, real estate assets andstle residential condominiums recorded at fair @ait
a nonfecurring basis as a result of our quarterly impaint analysis, which were valued using broker apirof value and substantiated
internal cash flow projections.

Our Level 3 liabilities include the fair value ofiocontingent consideration to acquire real estatets and financing obligations, wt
were estimated by the income approach to approgirte price that would be paid in an orderly tratisa between market participar
utilizing: (1) contractual cash flows; (2) markmsed interest rates; and (3) a number of othemgstons including demand for spe
competition for customers, changes in market reatals, costs of operation and expected ownerghripgs.

The following tables set forth the assets and lités that we measure at fair value by level witttie fair value hierarchy. We deterrr
the level based on the lowest level of substaritipat used to determine fair value.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Quoted Prices
in Active
Markets for Significant Significant
September 30, Identical Assets Observable Unobservable
2012 or Liabilities Inputs Inputs

Assets:
Mortgages and notes receivable, at fair vadye $ 17,38: $ — % 17,38: $ —
Marketable securities of non-qualified deferred pemsation plan (in prepaid

expenses and other assets) 3,26¢ 3,26¢ — —
Tax increment financing bond (in prepaid expensesaher assets) 15,27( — — 15,27(

Total Assets $ 35,91¢ $ 3,26¢ % 17,38: $ 15,27(
Liabilities:
Mortgages and notes payable, at fair vaiyie $ 1,889,77 $ — $ 1889,77 $ —
Interest rate swaps (in accounts payable, accrygehses and other liabilities) 10,27+ — 10,27+ —
Non-qualified deferred compensation obligationgatounts payable, accrued

expenses and other liabilities) 3,26¢ 3,26¢ — —
Contingent consideration to acquire real estatetags accounts payable, accrued

expenses and other liabilities) 563 — — 563
Financing obligations, at fair valyg 18,93( — — 18,93(

Total Liabilities $ 192280 $ 3,26¢ $ 1,900,04 $ 19,49t
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9. Disclosure About Fair Value of Financial Instrument - Continued

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Quoted Prices
in Active
Markets for Significant Significant
December 31, Identical Assets Observable Unobservable
2011 or Liabilities Inputs Inputs

Assets:
Mortgages and notes receivable, at fair vadye $ 18,99 $ — 18,99 $ —
Marketable securities of non-qualified deferred pemsation plan (in prepaid

expenses and other assets) 3,14¢ 3,14¢ — —
Tax increment financing bond (in prepaid expensesaher assets) 14,78¢ — — 14,78¢
Impaired real estate assets and for-sale residleotidominiums 12,767 — — 12,76%

Total Assets $ 49,69: % 3,14¢ % 18,99 $ 27,55t
Liabilities:
Mortgages and notes payable, at fair vaiye $ 1,959,443 % — $ 195943 $ —
Interest rate swaps (in accounts payable, accrxgehses and other liabilities) 2,20z — 2,20z —
Non-qualified deferred compensation obligationg@tounts payable, accrued

expenses and other liabilities) 3,14¢ 3,14¢ — —
Financing obligations, at fair valyg 18,86¢ — — 18,86¢

Total Liabilities $ 198365 $ 3,14¢ & 196164 $ 18,86¢

(1) Amounts carried at historical cost on oun€aidated Balance Sheets at September 30, 201Recember 31, 2011 , respectively.

The following table sets forth the changes in oavél 3 asset and liability, which are recordedaat ¥alue on our Consolidated Bala
Sheets on a recurring basis:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011
Asset:
Tax Increment Financing Bond:
Beginning balance $ 1537 $ 1522¢ $ 14,78¢ $ 15,69¢
Unrealized gains/(losses) (in AOCL) (107) 60C 482 12¢
Ending balance $ 1527( $ 15,82¢ $ 1527( $ 15,82¢
Liability:
Contingent Consideration to Acquire Real Estate Assts:
Beginning balance $ 677 $ — 677 $ —
Unrealized gains (in general and administrative) (114 — (119 —
Ending balance $ 56 % — $ 56t % —

During 2007, we acquired a tax increment finandimgd associated with a parking garage developedsbyrhis bond amortizes
maturity in 2020 . The estimated fair value at $egier 30, 2012 was $1.8 millidrelow the outstanding principal due on the bondh¢
discount rate used to fair value this bond waslda#¥is points higher or lower, the fair value of leed would have been $0.5 millikmwer ol
$0.6 million higher, respectively, as of Septem®@r2012. We intend to hold this bond and have concluded we will not be required
sell this bond before recovery of the bond princiPayment of the principal and interest for thedyds guaranteed by us. We have recc
no credit losses related to the bond during theetland nine months ended September 30, 2012 aidd Z@&re is no legal right of offset w
the liability, which we report as a financing olaign, related to this tax increment financing bond
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9. Disclosure About Fair Value of Financial Instrument - Continued

The following table sets forth quantitative inforiioa about the unobservable inputs of our LevesSeaand liability, which are recorc
at fair value on our Consolidated Balance Sheets @turring basis:

Fair Value at Valuation Unobservable Rate/
September 30, 2012 Technique Input Percentage
Tax increment financing bond $ 15,27( Income approach Discount rate 10.73%
Contingent consideration to acquire real estatetass $ 563 Income approach Payout percentage 75.0(%

10. Share-based Payment

During the nine months ended September 30, 20b2 Company granted 190,886ock options with an exercise price equal tc
closing market price of a share of its Common Stameckhe date of grant. The fair value of each apgicant is estimated on the date of g
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, whiebulted in a weighted average grant date fairevger share of $ 5.47 . During thiee
months ended September 30, 2012 , the Companygedsted 90,983 shares of time-based restricted stod 67,902 shares of total return-
based restricted stock with weighted average gtate fair values per share of $ 32.27 and $ 38ré%pectively. We recorded stobkse!
compensation expense of $ 2.0 million and $ 1.8anilduring the three months ended September 32 20d 2011 , respectively, and$
million and $ 4.8 million during the nine monthsded September 30, 2012 and 2011 , respectivelgefstember 30, 2012 , there was.6
million of total unrecognized stodkased compensation costs, which will be recognixed a weighted average remaining contractual tef
2.5 years.

11. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Los

The following table sets forth the components afumeulated other comprehensive loss:

Nine Months Ended September 30,

2012 2011
Tax increment financing bond:
Beginning balance $ (2,309 $ (2,549
Unrealized gains/(losses) on tax increment finapbiond 482 12¢
Ending balance (1,827 (2,414
Cash flow hedges:
Beginning balance (3,425 (1,105
Unrealized losses on cash flow hedges (10,429 —
Amortization of cash flow hedges 2,25( (87)
Ending balance (11,599 (1,197
Total accumulated other comprehensive loss $ (13,42 $ (3,606
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12. Discontinued Operation:

The following table sets forth our operations whiefguired classification as discontinued operations

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,

2012 2011 2012 2011

Rental and other revenues $ 87t $ 5301 $ 10,22 $ 16,21¢
Operating expenses:

Rental property and other expenses 29¢ 2,19¢ 3,76¢€ 6,57
Depreciation and amortization — 1,26¢ 2,00¢ 3,93t
Total operating expenses 298 3,46¢ 5,77¢ 10,50°
Interest expense 35 11¢ 28¢ 364
Income from discontinued operations 547 1,71« 4,062 5,34¢
Net gains on disposition of discontinued operations 22,93¢ 2,57: 29,45¢ 2,57:
Total discontinued operations $ 2348: § 428 $§ 33511 § 7,92

The following table sets forth the major classeasdets and liabilities of our real estate andradksets, net, held for sale and liabili
net, held for sale:

September 30, December 31,

2012 2011
Assets:

Land $ — 3 14,077
Buildings and tenant improvements — 135,01
Less-accumulated depreciation — (32,259
Net real estate assets — 116,83t
Accrued straight-line rents receivable — 6,52(
Deferred leasing costs, net — 811
Prepaid expenses and other assets — 10€
Real estate and other assets, net, held for sale $ — 3 124,27

Liabilities:
Mortgages and notes payable $ — 3 34,301
Accrued expenses and other liabilities — 214
Financing obligations — 1,29¢
Liabilities, net, held for sale $ — 35,81¢

As of September 30, 201,2here were no real estate and other assetsheldtfor sale. As of December 31, 2011, real estatkothe
assets held for sale, net, included five officepgrties in Nashville, TN, one office property imBilas County, FL, one office property a9@l
residential units in Kansas City, MO and thiméldings in Jackson, MS and Atlanta, GA. All oke#ie properties qualified for discontini
operations.
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13. Earnings Per Unit

The following table sets forth the computation abiz and diluted earnings per unit:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended Septembe
September 30, 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011
Earnings per Common Unit - basic:
Numerator:
Income from continuing operations $ 12317 $ 3957 $ 35118 $ 27,21
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling integeim consolidated affiliates from continuing ogeras (159 (249 (566€) (5549
Distributions on Preferred Units (627) (627) (1,88)) (3,92¢)
Excess of Preferred Unit redemption/repurchasemastcarrying value — — — (1,899
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders 11,53: 3,081 32,67 20,83’
Income from discontinued operations available fonmon unitholders 23,48: 4,28 33,517 7,921
Net income available for common unitholders $ 3501+ $ 7,36¢ $ 66,18t $ 28,75¢
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per Common Unit igited average unitg) (2) 79,94¢ 75,85¢ 78,03: 75,54¢
Earnings per Common Unit - basic:
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders $ 0.1t $ 0.0¢ $ 04z $ 0.2¢
Income from discontinued operations available fonmon unitholders 0.2¢ 0.0¢ 0.4z 0.1C
Net income available for common unitholders $ 04/ 8 01C $ 08t $ 0.3¢
Earnings per Common Unit - diluted:
Numerator:
Income from continuing operations $ 12317 $ 3957 $ 35118 $ 27,21
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteeeim consolidated affiliates from continuing ogeras (159 (249 (56€) (5549
Distributions on Preferred Units (627) (627) (1,88)) (3,92¢)
Excess of Preferred Unit redemption/repurchasemastcarrying value = — — (1,895
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders 11,53 3,081 32,67: 20,837
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon unitholders 23,48: 4,28 33,517 7,921
Net income available for common unitholders $ 3501+ $ 7,36¢ $ 66,18¢ $ 28,75¢
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per Common Unit giveid average units) (2) 79,94¢ 75,85t 78,03: 75,54¢
Add:
Stock options using the treasury method 137 13¢ 127 16¢
Denominator for diluted earnings per Common Uratjusted weighted average units and assumed
conversiong1) 80,08¢ 75,99¢ 78,15¢ 75,71¢
Earnings per Common Unit - diluted:
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders $ 0.1t $ 0.0¢ $ 04z $ 0.2¢
Income from discontinued operations available fonmon unitholders 0.2¢ 0.0¢ 0.4z 0.1C
Net income available for common unitholders $ 044  $ 01C  $ 08t $ 0.3¢

(1) There were 0.5 million and 0.4 million optiocoststanding during the three months ended Septedihe2012 and 2011 , respectively, @ million
and 0.3 million options outstanding during the ninenths ended September 30, 2012 and 20&4pectively, that were not included in the cotapar
of diluted earnings per unit because the impaata@@iding such options would be anti-dilutive

(2) Includes all unvested restricted stock sinw&ldnds on restricted stock are nfamfeitable
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14. Segment Informatior

The following table summarizes the rental and otkeenues and net operating income, the primanysing propertylevel performanc
metric which is defined as rental and other reveness rental property and other expenses, for egittable segment:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011
Rental and Other Revenues(i)

Office:
Atlanta, GA $ 14,07¢ $ 12,167 $ 44,31 $ 34,70
Greenville, SC 3,297 3,617 10,28¢ 10,55¢
Kansas City, MO 4,01¢ 3,412 11,17¢ 10,37:
Memphis, TN 9,10¢ 9,39: 27,61: 27,80¢
Nashville, TN 14,28¢ 13,79: 42,47 40,10¢
Orlando, FL 2,747 2,67¢ 8,18¢ 7,612
Piedmont Triad, NC 5,60: 4,91z 15,75: 15,54¢
Pittsburgh, PA 9,48¢ 1,56¢ 27,68: 1,56¢
Raleigh, NC 20,58t 20,047 60,75¢ 59,46:
Richmond, VA 11,85: 13,37t 35,45 36,42t
Tampa, FL 17,61¢ 17,37( 52,32« 50,80¢
Total Office Segment 112,66¢ 102,33: 336,02: 294,96!

Industrial:

Atlanta, GA 3,21k 3,29: 9,522 9,98¢
Piedmont Triad, NC 3,14: 3,151 9,39- 8,95:
Total Industrial Segment 6,357 6,44¢ 18,91« 18,94:

Retail:
Kansas City, MO 9,18¢ 8,49( 27,18t 25,59(
Total Retail Segment 9,18¢ 8,49( 27,18¢ 25,59(
Total Rental and Other Revenues $ 128,21« § 117,261 § 382,12( § 339,49
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14. Segment Information - Continued

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011
Net Operating Income: (1)
Office:
Atlanta, GA $ 870¢ $ 740¢ $ 28,23¢ $ 21,55¢
Greenville, SC 1,80¢ 2,09¢ 5,994 6,23
Kansas City, MO 2,54¢ 2,00z 7,07C 6,25¢
Memphis, TN 5,38¢ 5,171 16,247 15,29t
Nashville, TN 9,78¢ 9,28: 29,28t 27,27
Orlando, FL 1,36¢ 1,37¢ 4,217 3,82¢
Piedmont Triad, NC 3,33: 2,89¢ 9,78¢ 9,94:
Pittsburgh, PA 4,957 88¢ 13,86: 88¢
Raleigh, NC 13,92( 13,91 42,08: 41,38:
Richmond, VA 7,87¢ 7,772 24,30z 23,85
Tampa, FL 11,081 10,797 32,75( 31,47:
Total Office Segment 70,77¢ 63,61: 213,83 187,98(
Industrial:
Atlanta, GA 2,33: 2,40¢ 6,94 7,41¢
Piedmont Triad, NC 2,25¢ 2,25: 6,857 6,581
Total Industrial Segment 4,59; 4,661 13,79¢ 13,99°
Retail:
Kansas City, MO 5,68¢ 5,03( 16,547 15,14«
Total Retail Segment 5,68¢ 5,03( 16,547 15,14
Total Net Operating Income 81,05t 73,30z 244,18: 217,12:
Reconciliation to income from continuing operationsbefore disposition of property,
condominiums and investments in unconsolidated affates and equity in earnings of
unconsolidated affiliates:
Depreciation and amortization (38,65 (35,05) (115,759 (99,659
Impairments of assets held for use — (2,429 — (2,429
General and administrative (9,799 (22,280) (28,499 (27,965
Interest expense (23,619 (24,27) (72,66.) (71,47¢)
Other income 1,91¢ 1,50t 4,91C 5,25
Income from continuing operations before dispositia of property, condominiums and
investments in unconsolidated affiliates and equitjn earnings of unconsolidated affiliates $ 10,90¢  § 77€ $ 32,18 § 20,84t

(1) Net of discontinued operatiol
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15. Subsequent Event

On October 11, 2012 , we modified our existing $204illion , five year unsecured bank term, which was originally dakesl to matur
in February 2016 . The loan is now scheduled taimah January 2018nd the interest rate was reduced from LIBOR pRGi2asis points-
LIBOR plus 165 basis points. We incurred $0.9 millof deferred financing fees in connection with thedification, which will be amortize
along with existing unamortized deferred loan feesr the remaining term of the new loan. Proceedls twonew participants, aggregat
$35.0 million , were used to reduce amounts oudita@nunder our revolving credit facility. Twaf the original participants, which still hold
aggregate $35.0 million of the principal balancdemthe original term loan, will be fully paid afh or before February 25, 2013 .

On October 18, 2012 , we acquired an additionalica¢dffice property in Greensboro, NC for a puredgrice of $ 13.3 million This
purchase price includes the assumption of secuebtiekpected to be recorded at fair value of $¥ilBon , with an effective interest rate
4.06% , including amortization of deferred finargioosts. This debt matures in August 2014 . We exjmeexpense approximately$l
million of acquisition costs related to this tractsan.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The Company is a fully integrated, self-administesand selfmanaged equity REIT that provides leasing, managgnaevelopmen
construction and other custometated services for our properties and for thiadtips. The Company conducts virtually all of itgities
through the Operating Partnership. The OperatimgnBeship is managed by the Company, its sole gémpartner. At September 30, 2012
we owned or had an interest in 333 in-service effindustrial and retail properties, encompassimgr@imately 34.1 milliorsquare fee
which includes one office property under developtrtompassing 228,0@Quare feet and a 12.5% interest in a 261,000 sdaat office
property directly owned by the Company (not incldda the Operating Partnership's Consolidated FisghrStatements); five fosale
residential condominiums and a 21 rental residential property under developmé&¥ié are based in Raleigh, North Carolina, anc
properties and development land are located iniddprGeorgia, Missouri, North Carolina, Pennsyleartsouth Carolina, Tennessee
Virginia. Additional information about us can baufa on our website atww.highwoods.com Information on our website is not part of
Quarterly Report.

You should read the following discussion and analys conjunction with the accompanying Consolidaténancial Statements ¢
related notes contained elsewhere in this Quarkelyort.

Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Some of the information in this Quarterly Reportymeontain forwardeoking statements. Such statements include, iticpédar,
statements about our plans, strategies and praspader this section. You can identify forward-loak statements by our use of forward-
looking terminology such as “may,” “will,” “expeét;anticipate,” “estimate,” “continue’dr other similar words. Although we believe that
plans, intentions and expectations reflected isumgested by such forwaloleking statements are reasonable, we cannot agsuréhat ou
plans, intentions or expectations will be achievafthen considering such forwaldeking statements, you should keep in mind thiofdhg
important factors that could cause our actual tegaldiffer materially from those contained in doyward-looking statement:

” u ” u

» the financial condition of our customers could derate

* we may not be able to lease or release secondajmmespace, defined as previously occupied sgatebecomes available for lee
quickly or on as favorable terms as old leases;

* we may not be able to lease our newly construatéldibgs as quickly or on as favorable terms agipéilly anticipatec

e« we may not be able to complete development, aderisireinvestment, disposition or joint venturejpcts as quickly or on
favorable terms as anticipated,;

» development activity by our competitors in our &Rrig markets could result in an excessive supplyftite, industrial and ret:
properties relative to customer demand;

e our markets may suffer declines in economic grc
e unanticipated increases in interest rates coullct@se our debt service co
e unanticipated increases in operating expenses cagdtively impact our operating rest

e we may not be able to meet our liquidity requiretaesr obtain capital on favorable terms to fund warking capital needs a
growth initiatives or to repay or refinance outstisng debt upon maturity; and

» the Company could lose key executive offic
This list of risks and uncertainties, however, @ imtended to be exhaustive. You should also vevhe other cautionary statements
make in “ltem 1A. Business — Risk Factors” settdr our 2011 Annual Report on Form KO-Given these uncertainties, you should

place undue reliance on forwal@bking statements. We undertake no obligation ubliply release the results of any revisions tost
forward-looking statements to reflect any futuremté or circumstances or to reflect the occurrefiecsmanticipated events.
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Executive Summary
Our Strategic Plan focuses on:
e owning highguality, differentiated real estate assets in #itel submarkets in our core mark

e improving the operating results of our existinggedies through concentrated leasing, asset maragepost control and custor
service efforts;

» developing and acquiring office properties in kefilli submarkets that improve the overall quality aur portfolio and genere
attractive returns over the long-term for our stuamllers;

» selectively disposing of properties no longer cdesed to be core assets primarily due to locatge, quality and overall strate
fit; and

* maintaining a conservative, flexible balance shett ample liquidity to meet our funding needs ayndwth prospect

While we own and operate a limited number of indaktretail and residential properties, our op@tresults depend heavily
successfully leasing and operating our office prige Economic growth and employment levels in cane markets are and will continue
be important determinative factors in predicting future operating results.

The key components affecting our rental and otegemues are average occupancy, rental rates, neslogeents placed in servi
acquisitions and dispositions. Average occupanaegdly increases during times of improving ecorogrowth, as our ability to lease sp
outpaces vacancies that occur upon the expiratibegisting leases. Average occupancy generallfirdecduring times of slower econor
growth, when new vacancies tend to outpace ouityalil lease space. Asset acquisitions, dispostammd new developments placed in sel
directly impact our rental revenues and could immag average occupancy, depending upon the occypate of the properties that
acquired, sold or placed in service. A further @adior of the predictability of future revenueshs expected lease expiration schedule o
portfolio. As a result, in addition to seeking teliease our average occupancy by leasing curreanvapace, we also must concentrate
leasing efforts on renewing leases on expiring spac

Whether or not our rental revenue tracks averagapgancy proportionally depends upon whether remtieuinew leases signed are hig
or lower than the rents under the previous leasesualized rental revenues from second generaéiasds signed during any particular
are generally less than 15% of our total annuaiteevenues. During the third quarter of 2012 ,lessed 0.9 milliorsquare feet of seco
generation office space, defined as space preyiaesupied under our ownership that becomes availfao lease or acquired vacant sp
with a weighted average term of 5.8 years. On aergenant improvements for such leases were $pe66quare foot, lease commissi
were $4.80 per square foot and rent concessions $8R7 per square foot. Annualized GAAP rents usdeh office leases were $20.9d1
square foot, or 2.4% higher than under previousdsa

We strive to maintain a diverse, stable and cregtifay customer base. We have an internal guidelinereby customers that account
more than 3% of our revenues are periodically reetk with the Company's Board of Directors. Curigntio customer accounts for m
than 3% of our revenues other than the Federal @owent , which accounted for 7.2 our revenues on an annualized basis,
September 30, 2012 .

Our expenses primarily consist of rental propertpemses, depreciation and amortization, general ahdinistrative expenses ¢
interest expense. From time to time, expensesiatdade impairments of assets held for use. Rqartgderty expenses are expenses asso
with our ownership and operation of rental progariand include expenses that vary somewhat propatély to occupancy levels, suct
common area maintenance and utilities, and expehaeslo not vary based on occupancy, such as gyoees and insurance. Deprecia
and amortization is a notash expense associated with the ownership ofpregerty and generally remains relatively consiseath yea
unless we buy, place in service or sell assetgesive depreciate our properties and related bgjldind tenant improvement assets
straightline basis over a fixed life. General and admiaibfe expenses, net of amounts capitalized, copsistarily of management a
employee salaries and other personnel costs, @igpoverhead and long-term incentive compensation.
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We intend to maintain a conservative and flexibddahce sheet that allows us to capitalize on falerdevelopment and acquisit
opportunities as they arise. As of September 3022®ur mortgages and notes payable represent8éo43 the undepreciated book value
our assets. We expect this ratio to remain undés 80ring the remainder of 2012 .

Results of Operations
Three Months Ended September 30, 2012 and 2011
Rental and Other Revenues

Rental and other revenues from continuing operatisare $10.9 million , or 9.3% , higher in the dhquarter of 2012s compared
2011 primarily due to recent acquisitions, whicltamted for $11.8 million of the increase. In aidif same property revenues wé@e€
million higher in the third quarter of 2012 as carmgd to 201Jprimarily due to a slight increase in same prop@xgrage occupancy &
annualized GAAP rents per square foot from 90.0%h%IB.72 , respectively, in the third quarter o12@0 90.4% and $18.73espectively
in the third quarter of 201@nd higher operating expense recoveries. Theseadses were partly offset by lower construction meamf $1.’
million. We expect rental and other revenues fer iiaimainder of 2012 , adjusted for any future aitjons, to be higher compared20611
primarily due to the contribution of recent acqtiisis and slightly higher average occupancy insaume property portfolio.

Operating Expenses

Rental property and other expenses were $3.2 millar 7.3% , higher in the third quarter of 2082campared to 201fdrimarily due t«
recent acquisitions, which accounted for $5.0 orilliof the increase, partly offset by $1.7 millimwer cost of construction income.
addition, same property operating expenses wer® iBlion lower in the third quarter of 2012 as quamed to 201primarily due to lowe
real estate taxes. We expect rental property aner @xpenses for the remainder of 2Q0Hljusted for any future acquisitions, to be hi
compared to 2011 primarily due to the contributddmecent acquisitions.

Operating margin, defined as rental and other negeness rental property and other expenses ergressa percentage of rental
other revenues, was higher at 63.2% in the thiaftgu of 2012 as compared to 62.5% in 200perating margin is expected to be simila
the remainder of 2012 as compared to 2011 .

Depreciation and amortization was $3.6 million ,16:3% , higher in the third quarter of 2012 as pared to 201Jrimarily due t
recent acquisitions, which accounted for $4.0 onillof the increase. We expect depreciation expfrghe remainder of 2012adjusted fc
any future acquisitions, to be higher comparedXblXor a similar reason as stated above.

Impairments of assets held for use was $2.4 millover in the third quarter of 2012 as compared@@d1primarily due to the impairme
of two office properties located in Orlando, FLthe third quarter of 2011 which resulted from argd®in the assumed timing of fut
dispositions. Impairments can arise from a numlidactors; accordingly, there can be no assuratitatswe will not be required to rect
additional impairment charges in the future.

General and administrative expenses were $2.50mijlor 20.4% , lower in the third quarter of 2@G2compared to 20Xrimarily due tc
lower acquisition costs which accounted for $3.@iom of the decrease, partly offset by higher saland incentive compensation anc
higher deferred compensation expense caused bygebam valuation which is fully offset by a corresgding adjustment from higher vali
of the related segregated assets recorded in $ttanel other income. We expect general and admatiis expenses for the remainde
2012 , adjusted for any future acquisitions, tipeilar to 2011 .

Interest Expense

Interest expense was $0.7 million , or 2.7% , loimethe third quarter of 2012 as compared to 2pdarily due to lower average d
balances, average interest rates and financingathin interest expense and higher capitalizeddaste We anticipate interest expense
decrease for the remainder of 2012 as comparedltd fr similar reasons as stated above.
Gains on Disposition of I nvestment in Unconsolidated Affiliates

Gains on disposition of investment in unconsolidatiliates was $2.3 million lower in the third ater of 2012 as compared to 20dLie

to our partner exercising its option to acquire 0% equity interest in one of our unconsolidatéck ventures in 2011.
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Net Gains on Disposition of Discontinued Operations

Net gains on disposition of discontinued operatioese $20.4 million higher in the third quarter2§12 as compared to 204le tc
higher disposition activity.

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2012 and 2011
Rental and Other Revenues

Rental and other revenues from continuing operatiare $42.6 million , or 12.6% , higher in theenmonths ended September 2012
as compared to 201drimarily due to recent acquisitions, which accednfor $36.5 million of the increase. In additi@mame proper
revenues were $7.2 million higher in the nine merghded September 30, 2012 as compared to @Ohhrily due to an increase in se
property average occupancy and annualized GAAPs reat square foot from 89.9% and $18,52spectively, in the nine months en
September 30, 2011 to 90.7% and $18.75 , respégtivethe nine months ended September 30, 20igher operating expense recove
and higher net termination fees. These increases pagtly offset by lower construction income ofBillion.

Operating Expenses

Rental property and other expenses were $15.8omillior 12.9% , higher in the nine months endede®eiper 30, 2012s compared
2011 primarily due to recent acquisitions, which accedhfor $16.5 million of the increase, partly offdst $1.7 million lower cost «
construction income. In addition, same propertyratieg expenses were $0.4 million higher in theemimonths ended September 30, 2842
compared to 2011 primarily due to higher repairs ewaintenance costs, partly offset by lower uéititand real estate taxes.

Operating margin, defined as rental and other negeness rental property and other expenses ergressa percentage of rental
other revenues, was lower at 63.9% in the nine hwoabhded September 30, 2012 , as compared to 64.2041 .

Depreciation and amortization was $16.1 milliorr 16.2% , higher in the nine months ended Septer8Be2012 as compared 2011
primarily due to recent acquisitions, which accednfior $14.2 million of the increase.

Impairments of assets held for use was $2.4 millaver in the nine months ended September 30, 281@mpared to 201drimarily
due to the impairment of two office properties l@chin Orlando, FL in the third quarter of 2011 @hresulted from a change in the assu
timing of future dispositions.

General and administrative expenses were $0.3omillior 1.1% , higher in the nine months ended é&abér 30, 2012as compared
2011 primarily due to lower acquisition and dead deadtspoffset by higher salaries and incentive corspgon and by higher defer
compensation expense caused by changes in valuakimh is fully offset by a corresponding adjustmé&om higher values of the rela
segregated assets recorded in interest and ottana

I nterest Expense

Interest expense was $1.2 million , or 1.7% , highehe nine months ended September 30, 2012 mpa@d to 201primarily due t
higher average debt balances, partly offset by t@wverage interest rates and financing obligatmerest expense.

Gains on Disposition of I nvestment in Unconsolidated Affiliates

Gains on disposition of investment in unconsolidaffiliates was $2.3 million lower in the nine ntbs ended September 30, 242
compared to 201dlue to our partner exercising its option to acqoine 10.0% equity interest in one of our unconsxbfd joint ventures
2011.
Equity in Earnings of Unconsolidated Affiliates

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates v#4s3 million lower in the nine months ended SefftenB80, 2012 as compared2011]

primarily due to our share of impairments of resthée assets on two office properties in our Djdirit venture in 2011.
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Net Gains on Disposition of Discontinued Operations

Net gains on disposition of discontinued operatimese $26.9 million higher in the nine months enS8egtember 30, 2018 compare
to 2011 due to higher disposition activity.

Dividends on Preferred Stock and Excess of Preferred Stock Redemption/Repurchase Cost Over Carrying Value
Dividends on Preferred Stock were $2.0 million lovwrethe nine months ended September 30, 2012 mpaed to 201And excess

Preferred Stock redemption/repurchase cost oveyingrvalue was $1.9 million lower in the nine miositended September 30, 2042
compared to 2011 due to the redemption of all ramgiSeries B Preferred Shares in 2011.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Overview

Our goal is to maintain a conservative and flexiéance sheet with access to multiple sourcesbf @nd equity capital and suffici
availability under our revolving credit facility. 8/generally use rents received from customers madl four operating expenses, caj
expenditures and distributions. To fund propertyuigitions, development activity or building rentieas and repay debt upon maturity,
may use current cash balances, sell assets, ot#wirdebt and/or issue equity. Our debt generalhsists of mortgage debt, unsecured
securities and borrowings under our revolving dréadiility.
Statements of Cash Flows

We report and analyze our cash flows based on tipgractivities, investing activities and financiagtivities. The following table s¢

forth the changes in the Company’s cash flows (Bausands):

Nine Months Ended September 30,

2012 2011 Change
Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities $ 138,01¢ $ 136,12 $ 1,89:
Net Cash Used In Investing Activities (94,75() (180,12) 85,37:
Net Cash Provided By/(Used In) Financing Activities (45,370 40,88( (86,25()
Total Cash Flows $ (2,109 $ (3119 $ 1,01¢

In calculating net cash related to operating aibgisj depreciation and amortization, which are oash expenses, are added back t
income. As a result, we have historically generagubsitive amount of cash from operating actisitierom period to period, cash flow fr
operations depends primarily upon changes in otirim@me, as discussed more fully above under “Resaf Operations,’changes i
receivables and payables, and net additions oredses in our overall portfolio, which affect thecamt of depreciation and amortizat
expense.

Net cash related to investing activities generadlates to capitalized costs incurred for leasing major building improvements and
acquisition, development, disposition and joint tuea capital activity. During periods of signifidanet acquisition and/or developm
activity, our cash used in such investing actigitiéll generally exceed cash provided by investtjvities, which typically consists of ce
received upon the sale of properties and distidimstiof capital from our joint ventures.

Net cash related to financing activities generadlifates to distributions, incurrence and repayneémtebt, and issuances, repurchass
redemptions of Common Stock, Common Units and edeStock. As discussed previously, we use afsigmit amount of our cash to fu
distributions. Whether or not we have increasdbénoutstanding balances of debt during a perigetgs generally upon the net effect of
acquisition, disposition, development and joint tuee activity. We generally use our revolving ctediility for working capital purpose
which means that during any given period, in otdeminimize interest expense, we may record sigaift repayments and borrowings ur
our revolving credit facility.

The change in net cash related to operating aesvih the nine months ended September 30, 20&@rapared to 201vas primarily du
to higher net cash from acquired properties, paftiset by higher cash paid for operating expenses.

The change in net cash related to investing aigt#vin the nine months ended September 30, 20t8@rapared to 201Wvas primarily du
to higher acquisition activity in 2012, a loan unconsolidated affiliate in 2011 and higher nmeicpeds from disposition of real estate a:
in 2012, partly offset by proceeds from dispositadrinvestment in unconsolidated affiliates in 2011

The change in net cash related to financing a@s/in the nine months ended September 30, 20&@rapared to 201dvas primarily du

to higher net repayments of borrowings in 2012 tlpanffset by higher proceeds from the issuanceCoimmon Stock in 2012 a
redemptions/repurchases of Preferred Stock in 2011.
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Capitalization

The following table sets forth the Company’s cdjzitdion (in thousands, except per share amounts):

September 30, December 31,

2012 2011
Mortgages and notes payable, at recorded book value $ 1,77855 % 1,903,21.
Financing obligations $ 27,79: $ 31,44
Preferred Stock, at liquidation value $ 29,077 $ 29,077
Common Stock outstanding 78,53( 72,64¢
Common Units outstanding (not owned by the Company) 3,77¢ 3,73(
Per share stock price at period end $ 3262 $ 29.67
Market value of Common Stock and Common Units $ 2,684,78 $ 2,266,13
Total market capitalization $ 4,520,21 $  4,229,86!

At September 30, 2012 , our mortgages and noteabfmyepresented 39.3% of our total market capatbn and consisted &685.¢
million of secured indebtedness with a weightedage interest rate of 5.71% and $1,093.2 milbbansecured indebtedness with a weig
average interest rate of 4.72%he secured indebtedness was collateralizeddlyestate assets with an aggregate undepreciatddviatue o
$1,148.2 million .

Current and Future Cash Needs

Rental and other revenues are our principal soofréends to meet our short-term liquidity requirertee Other sources of funds for short-
term liquidity needs include available working dapand borrowings under our existing revolvingditéacility, which had $ 415.4 millioof
availability at October 22, 2012 . Our shtetm liquidity requirements primarily consist of empting expenses, interest and princ
amortization on our debt, dividends and distribogicand capital expenditures, including building ioyement costs, tenant improverr
costs and lease commissions. Building improvemeangs capital costs to maintain existing buildings typically related to a speci
customer. Tenant improvements are the costs ratjtoreustomize space for the specific needs ofocusts. We anticipate that our availe
cash and cash equivalents and cash provided bwatopgractivities, together with cash available froorrowings under our revolving cre
facility, will be adequate to meet our short-teiquidity requirements.

Our longterm liquidity uses generally consist of the ratient or refinancing of debt upon maturity (incluglimortgage debt, o
revolving and construction credit facilities, tefoans and other unsecured debt), funding of exjséind new building development or i
infrastructure projects and funding acquisitiondofldings and development land. Additionally, waynfrom time to time, retire some or
of our remaining outstanding Preferred Stock andfiesecured debt securities through redemptionsn oparket repurchases, prival
negotiated acquisitions or otherwise.

We expect to meet our long-term liquidity needstigh a combination of:

» cash flow from operating activitie

e borrowings under our revolving credit facili

» theissuance of unsecured d

» theissuance of secured di

» the issuance of equity securities by the Comparth@Operating Partnership;

» the disposition of norere asset
Recent Acquisition and Disposition Activity

During the third quarter of 2012 , we acquired ¢hpeoperties for a total purchase price of $161illam , consisting of (1) &92,00(

square foot office property in Atlanta, GA for $418 million and (2) two medical office properties Greensboro, NC for $ 16.3 millign
which included the issuance of 66,864 Common Uit contingent consideration with fair value at the
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acquisition date of $0.7 million . We expensed agjpnately $0.7 million of acquisition costs relatedthese transactions. @ctober 1¢
2012 , we acquired an additional medical officepgnty in Greensboro, NC for a purchase price of3$ Imillion . This purchase pri
includes the assumption of secured debt expectdut trecorded at fair value of $ 7.9 million , wiln effective interest rate of 4.06%
including amortization of deferred financing coskbis debt matures in August 2014 . We expect fmeage approximately $ 0.1 milliasf
acquisition costs related to this transaction.

During the third quarter of 2012 , we sold:
» an office property in Kansas City, MO for $ éfillion and recorded gain on disposition of diséonéd operations of $ 1.9 millian
» five office buildings in Nashville, TN for $ 40 million and recorded gain on disposition of distioued operations of $ 7.0 millian

» three buildings in Jackson, MS and Atlanta, @A$ 86.5 millionand recorded gain on disposition of discontinueeratons of -
14.0 million .

Recent Financing Activity

On May 25, 2011, we entered into separate equigssagreements with each of Merrill Lynch, Pieféenner & Smith Incorporate
Mitsubishi UFJ Securities (USA), Inc. and RBC CapMarkets. During the third quarter of 2012 , tbempany issued 1,481,45bares ¢
Common Stock under these equity sales agreemerdn aterage gross sales price of $3367 share raising net proceeds, after
commissions and expenses, of $48.3 million . Wd paiaggregate of $ 0.7 million sales commissions to Mitsubishi UFJ SecuritiéSA),
Inc. and RBC Capital Markets during the third qaadf 2012 .

On September 5, 2012, we entered into separatdyesagies agreements with each of Wells Fargo SwesyriLLC, BB&T Capita
Markets, a division of Scott & Stringfellow, LLCefferies & Company, Inc., Morgan Stanley & Co. Lia@d Piper Jaffray & Co. Under 1
terms of the equity distribution agreements, then@any may offer and sell shares of its Common Stamk time to time through such firn
acting as agents of the Company or as principakesSof the shares, if any, may be made by meansdafary brokers' transactions on
New York Stock Exchange or otherwise at marketgwiprevailing at the time of sale, at prices reldte prevailing market prices or
negotiated prices or as otherwise agreed with drguch firms. During the third quarter of 2012 e tBompany issued 1,386,3%Bares ¢
Common Stock under these equity distribution agesgmat an average gross sales price of $388%hare raising net proceeds, after :
commissions and expenses, of $45.6 million . Wel pai aggregate of $0.7 millian sales commissions to Wells Fargo Securities,
during the third quarter of 2012 .

Our $ 475.0 million unsecured revolving credit faigiis scheduled to mature on July 27, 204 includes an accordion feature
allows for an additional $ 75.0 millioof borrowing capacity subject to additional lendemmitments. Assuming no defaults have occu
we have an option to extend the maturity for anitaaithl year. The interest rate at our current itreatings is LIBOR plus 150 basis poi
and the annual facility fee is 35 basis points. irfterest rate and facility fee are based on tlghdri of the publicly announced ratings fi
Moody's Investors Service or Standard & Poor'srigatiServices. We use our revolving credit facilityworking capital purposes and for
shortterm funding of our development and acquisitiorivétgt and, in certain instances, the repaymenttbeodebt. The continued ability
borrow under the revolving credit facility allows to quickly capitalize on strategic opportunigshort-term interest rates. There w&39%
million and $ 59.5 million outstanding under ouvatring credit facility at September 30, 2012 anck@ber 22, 2012 respectively. At bot
September 30, 2012 and October 22, 2012 , we h@adl $nillion of outstanding letters of credit, which reduces #wailability on ou
revolving credit facility. As a result, the unuseapacity of our revolving credit facility at Septeen 30, 2012 and October 22, 204as ¢
385.9 million and $ 415.4 million , respectively.

On October 11, 2012 , we modified our $200.0 millidive year unsecured bank term loan, which was origiredtyeduled to mature
February 2016 . The loan is now scheduled to matudanuary 2018&nd the interest rate was reduced from LIBOR pR 2asis points
LIBOR plus 165 basis points. We incurred $0.9 millof deferred financing fees in connection with thedification, which will be amortize
along with existing unamortized deferred loan feesr the remaining term of the new loan. Proceedls twonew participants, aggregat
$35.0 million , were used to reduce amounts oudita@nunder our revolving credit facility. Twaf the original participants, which still hold
aggregate $35.0 million of the principal balancdemthe original term loan, will be fully paid afh or before February 25, 2013 .

During the third quarter of 2012 , we paid down éingount outstanding under our variable rate coastnloan by $34.3 million .
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We regularly evaluate the financial condition oé tlenders that participate in our credit facilitigssing publicly available informatic
Based on this review, we currently expect our lesdehich are major financial institutions, to perh their obligations under our exist
facilities.

Covenant Compliance

We are currently in compliance with the covenamtd ather requirements with respect to our outstapdiebt. Although we expect
remain in compliance with these covenants andgdtipat least the next year, depending upon aurdwperating performance, property
financing transactions and general economic camtiwe cannot assure you that we will continueetin compliance.

Our revolving credit facility and bank term loansquire us to comply with customary operating cowsiaand various financ
requirements. Upon an event of default on the rénglcredit facility, the lenders having at leaét ®% of the total commitments under
revolving credit facility can accelerate all boriogs then outstanding, and we could be prohibitethfborrowing any further amounts un
our revolving credit facility, which would advergadffect our ability to fund our operations.

The Operating Partnership has $379.2 million cagyamount of 2017 bonds outstanding and $200.@omitlarrying amount of 20:
bonds outstanding. The indenture that governs thets#anding notes requires us to comply with qusity operating covenants and vari
financial ratios. The trustee or the holders deast 25.0%n principal amount of either series of bonds ceceerate the principal amount
such series upon written notice of a default teatains uncured after 60 days.

We may not be able to repay, refinance or exterydoarall of our debt at maturity or upon any accatien. If any refinancing is done
higher interest rates, the increased interest esgpeauld adversely affect our cash flow and abititypay distributions. Any such refinanc
could also impose tighter financial ratios and otmvenants that restrict our ability to take agsidhat could otherwise be in our best inte
such as funding new development activity, makingasfunistic acquisitions, repurchasing our seasitir paying distributions.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

During the second quarter of 2011, we provided38.8 million interesbnly secured loan to our DLF | joint venture thagmally was
scheduled to mature in March 2012he loan bears interest at LIBOR plus 500 bagistg. The maturity date of the loan has been eddric
December 31, 2012 . In the second quarter of 20th2 putstanding balance of the loan was reducekl 18.0 millionas a result of ol
acquisition of an office property from the jointntare. We recorded interest income from this loaimierest and other income $8.1 millior
and $0.5 million during the three months ended &aper 30, 2012 and 2011 , respectively, and $0l&mand $0.8 million during thaine
months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011 , resggcti

During the third quarter of 2012 , we provided seth-year, $ 20.8 million interestily secured loan to our Harborview Plaza |
venture that is scheduled to mature in Septemb#s 2@hich the joint venture used to repay a secusad bt maturity to a third party lenc
This new loan bears interest at LIBOR plus 500psints, subject to a LIBOR floor of 0.5% .

There were no other significant changes to ourbafifance sheet arrangements in the three monthsl édefgtember 30, 2012Fo1
information regarding our off balance sheet arramgi@s at December 31, 201%ee Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial Statésrianou
2011 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Critical Accounting Estimates

There were no changes made by management to tiealcaccounting policies in the nine months en@egtember 30, 2012For ¢
description of our critical accounting estimates=e 8Management's Discussion and Analysis of Firsr@bndition and Results of Operations -
Critical Accounting Estimates” in our 2011 Annuapdrt on Form 10-K.

Non-GAAP Measures - FFO and NOI

The Company believes that Funds from Operation§@'F and FFO per share are beneficial to managementrsedtors and a
important indicators of the performance of any 8gREIT. Because FFO and FFO per share calculaggolide such factors as deprecial
amortization and impairments of real estate ass®isgains or losses from sales of operating reéateeassets, which can vary among ow
of identical assets in similar conditions basechatorical cost accounting and useful life estirsataey facilitate comparisons of opera
performance between periods and between other REWBmagement believes that historical cost accagnfor real estate assets
accordance with GAAP implicitly assumes that thtugeof real estate assets diminishes predictabdy twme. Since real estate values t
historically risen or fallen with market conditigneany industry investors and analysts have coresidthe presentation of operating res
for real estate companies that use historical @osbunting to be insufficient on a staaldne basis. As a result, management believegtte
use of FFO and FFO per share,
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together with the required GAAP presentations, ey a more complete understanding of the Compamsfformance relative to
competitors and a more informed and appropriates lmeswhich to make decisions involving operatifigancing and investing activities.

FFO and FFO per share are MBAAP financial measures and therefore do not regreaset income or net income per share as defip
GAAP. Net income and net income per share as difiyeGAAP are the most relevant measures in deténgiithe Company's operat
performance because FFO and FFO per share inctijdstments that investors may deem subjective, ascadding back expenses suc
depreciation, amortization and impairments. Furtt@e, FFO per share does not depict the amounttiwtes directly to the stockhold
benefit. Accordingly, FFO and FFO per share shogider be considered as alternatives to net incametancome per share as indicator
the Company's operating performance.

The Company's presentation of FFO is consistertt WEO as defined by the National Association of IREstate Investment Tru:
(“NAREIT"), which is calculated as follows:

* Netincome/(loss) computed in accordance with G/
e Less net income attributable to noncontrollingriests in consolidated affiliate
» Plus depreciation and amortization of depreciaplerating propertie

e Less gains, or plus losses, from sales of depriecigterating properties, plus impairments on depbde operating properties &
excluding items that are classified as extraorgiitems under GAAP;

* Plus or minus our proportionate share of adjustméntluding depreciation and amortization of defaiele operating properties,
unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventureseflect funds from operations on the same basig); a

» Plus or minus adjustments for depreciation and @iradion and gains/(losses) on sales of depreciapkrating properties, pl
impairments on depreciable operating propertiesi aoncontrolling interests in consolidated afféiatrelated to discontinu
operations.

In calculating FFO, the Company excludes net incattgbutable to noncontrolling interests in thee@giing Partnership, which 1
Company believes is consistent with standard ingustactice for REITs that operate through an UPR&tucture. The Company belier
that it is important to present FFO on ancasverted basis since all of the Common Units mated by the Company are redeemable
one-for-one basis for shares of its Common Stock.

The following table sets forth the Company's FF@ BRO per share ($ in thousands, except per shavargs):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011

Funds from operations:
Net income $ 3579% $ 8,24« $ 68,62¢ $ 35,12
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteseim consolidated affiliates (159 (249 (56€) (554)
Depreciation and amortization of real estate assets 38,09: 34,53¢ 114,23 98,24¢
Impairments of depreciable properties — 2,42¢ — 2,42¢
Unconsolidated affiliates:

Depreciation and amortization of real estate assets 2,02¢ 2,06¢€ 5,801 6,192

Impairments of depreciable properties — — 1,00z —
Discontinued operations:

Depreciation and amortization of real estate assets — 1,26¢ 2,00¢ 3,93t

(Gains) on disposition of depreciable properties (22,93¢) (2,579 (29,45%H (2,579
Funds from operations 52,82: 45,72( 161,65( 142,79¢
Dividends on Preferred Stock (627) (627) (1,88)) (3,926
Excess of Preferred Stock redemption/repurchageowes carrying value — — — (1,89%)
Funds from operations available for common stockhalers $ 52,198 $ 45,09¢ $ 159,76¢ $ 136,97¢
Funds from operations available for common stockhalers per share $ 065 $ 05¢ $ 20z % 1.8C
Weighted average shares outstanding) 80,49 76,40: 78,56¢ 76,12
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(1) Includes assumed conversion of all potentiallytdieiCommon Stock equivaler

In addition, the Company believes net operatingoime from continuing operations (“NOI"and same property NOI are usi
supplemental measures of the Compangtoperty operating performance because such anepriovide a performance measure of
revenues and expenses directly involved in own@s estate assets and provides a perspective natdiately apparent from net income
FFO. The Company defines NOI as rental and otheemees from continuing operations, less rental @rtypand other expenses fr
continuing operations. The Company defines cash &N OI less straight line rent and lease termondiges. Other REITs may use diffel
methodologies to calculate NOI and same property. NO

Our same property portfolio currently consists 88 2n-service office, industrial and retail propestencompassing 25.8 milliaguar:
feet that were wholly owned during the entiretytiod periods presented (from January 1, 2011 toeBepr 30, 2012 ). In our 20nnua
Report on Form 10-K, our same property portfoliosisted of 289 in-service office, industrial anthilgproperties encompassi.2 millior
square feet that were wholly owned during the ettiof the periods presented therein (from Jandar3010 to December 31, 20)1The
change in our same property portfolio was due ®dtidition of one office property encompassingriion square feet acquired dur
2010 and three newly developed office propertiepripassing 0.5 million square feet placed in serdigring 201Q offset by the removal
nine office properties encompassing 1.2 millionasgueet qualifying for discontinued operationsinigi2012 .

Rental and other revenues related to propertiesymmir same property portfolio were $18.8 milliand $8.5 million for thehree month
ended September 30, 2012 and 2011 , respectivedy$52.6 million and $17.2 million for the nine ntlos ended September 30, 20drx
2011 , respectively. Rental property and other Bgpse related to properties not in our same progmiifolio were $8.7 million an&5.C
million for the three months ended September 3@22hd 2011 , respectively, and $25.5 million ah@.$ million for thenine months endt
September 30, 2012 and 2011 , respectively.

The following table sets forth the Company’s NOtlasame property NOI:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011

Income from continuing operations before dispositia of property, condominiums and
investments in unconsolidated affiliates and equityn earnings of unconsolidated affiliates $ 10,90¢ $ 77¢  $ 32,18 $ 20,84:
Other (income) (1,91¢ (1,505 (4,910 (5,259
Interest expense 23,61: 24,27: 72,66 71,47¢
General and administrative 9,72¢ 12,21: 28,29¢ 27,98
Impairments of real estate assets — 2,42¢ — 2,42¢
Depreciation and amortization 38,65: 35,05! 115,75! 99,65¢
Net operating income from continuing operations 80,98: 73,23¢ 243,98t 217,13¢
Less — non same property and other net operatoarie 10,14( 3,501 27,14: 7,14¢
Total same property net operating income from contiuing operations $ 70,84: $ 69,73: $ 216,84t $ 209,99(
Rental and other revenues $ 128,21: $ 117,26' $ 382,12( $ 339,49
Rental property and other expenses 47,23 44,03: 138,13: 122,35¢
Total net operating income from continuing operatims 80,98: 73,23¢ 243,98t 217,13¢
Less — non same property and other net operataayia 10,14( 3,501 27,14 7,14¢
Total same property net operating income from contiuing operations $ 70,84 $ 69,73: $ 216,84t $ 209,99(
Total same property net operating income from caritig operations $ 70,84 $ 69,73: $ 216,84t $ 209,99(
Less — straight-line rent and lease terminatios fee 2,00z 2,697 9,27¢ 8,87¢
Same property cash net operating income from contiring operations $ 6883 § 67,03t $ 207,57 $ 201,11
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES AB OUT MARKET RISK

For information regarding our market risk as of bMaB1, 2012, see "Quantitative and Qualitative Dmares About Market Risk" in o
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterlyipetiended March 31, 2012.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

SEC rules require us to maintain disclosure cositaold procedures that are designed to ensurenfbatiation required to be disclosec
our annual and periodic reports filed with the SECecorded, processed, summarized and reportéunvitie time periods specified in -
SEC's rules and forms. The Company's CEO and CR@ tancluded that the disclosure controls and plees of the Company and
Operating Partnership were each effective at tideoéthe period covered by this Quarterly Report.

SEC rules also require us to establish and maintaérnal control over financial reporting designedprovide reasonable assure
regarding the reliability of financial reporting &athe preparation of financial statements for exepurposes in accordance with gene
accepting accounting principles. There were no ghaanin internal control over financial reportingridg the three months end
September 30, 201that materially affected, or are reasonably likedymaterially affect, the Company's internal cohtwger financia
reporting. There were also no changes in interoatrol over financial reporting during the three ntitts ended September 30, 2aha:
materially affected, or are reasonably likely totenilly affect, the Operating Partnership's ingmontrol over financial reporting.
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PART Il

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

During the third quarter of 2012 , the Company éssan aggregate of 3,088ares of Common Stock to holders of Common Unithé
Operating Partnership upon the redemption of adikeber of Common Units in private offerings exerfiptn the registration requireme
pursuant to Section 4(2) of the Securities Act.Eat the holders of Common Units was an accredite@stor under Rule 501 of t
Securities Act. The resale of such shares wastezgs by the Company under the Securities Act.

During the third quarter of 2012, the OperatingtRanship issued an aggregate of 66,864 Common ldsifsart of the acquisition of b
medical office properties in Greensboro, NC. ThenBwmn Units were issued in private offerings exeinpin registration requiremet
pursuant to Section 4(2) of the Securities Actdoradited investors under Rule 501 of the Secarhiet.

Exhibit

ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

Number Description
1 Form of Equity Distribution Agreement, dated Sepgbemb, 2012, among the Company, the Operating &atiip and eac
of the firms named therein (filed as part of therpany's Current Report on Form 8-K dated Septernb2012)
10.1 Second Amendment, dated as of October 11, 2012redit Agreement, dated as of February 2, 2011arx among th
Company, the Operating Partnership and the Subigidinamed therein and the Lenders named theiiksd és part of th
Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated Octabef012)
10.2 First Amendment, dated as of October 11, 2012, redi€ Agreement, dated as of January 11, 2012,nolysanong th
Company, the Operating Partnership and the Subigdinamed therein and the Lenders named theiiksd és part of th
Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated OctabeP012)
10.3 First Amendment, dated as of October 12, 2012,hHndTAmended and Restated Credit Agreement, dadeaf duly 27
2011, by and among the Company, the Operating &afiip and the Subsidiaries named therein and ¢neldrs name
therein (filed as part of the Company's Currentdkepn Form 8-K dated October 11, 2012)
12.1 Statement re: Computation of Ratios of the Company
12.2 Statement re: Computation of Ratios of the Opegafiartnership
31.1 Certification of CEO Pursuant to Section 302 of 8zebane©xley Act for the Company
31.2 Certification of CFO Pursuant to Section 302 of #zgbane©xley Act for the Company
31.3 Certification of CEO Pursuant to Section 302 of 8zebane©xley Act for the Operating Partnership
31.4 Certification of CFO Pursuant to Section 302 of #sbane®xley Act for the Operating Partnership
32.1 Certification of CEO Pursuant to Section 906 of 8zebane©xley Act for the Company
32.2 Certification of CFO Pursuant to Section 906 of #abane®©xley Act for the Company
32.3 Certification of CEO Pursuant to Section 906 of 8zebane©xley Act for the Operating Partnership
32.4 Certification of CFO Pursuant to Section 906 of #abane®©xley Act for the Operating Partnership
101.INS XBRL Instance Document
101.SCH  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation LinldeaDocument
101.DEF  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurhen
101.LAB XBRL Extension Labels Linkbase
101.PRE  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenim
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, each of the registrants has dailysed this report to be signed o
behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

Highwoods Properties, Inc.

By: /sl Terry L. Stevens

Terry L. Stevens
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Highwoods Realty Limited Partnership
By: Highwoods Properties, Inc., its sole genegatmer

By: Is/ Terry L. Stevens

Terry L. Stevens
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Date: October 30, 2012
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Exhibit 12.1

HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES AND
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO COMBINED FIXED CHARGES AND
PREFERRED STOCK DIVIDENDS

Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2012

Earnings:
Income from continuing operations before equitgamnings of unconsolidated affiliates $ 32,43¢
Fixed charges 74,38¢
Capitalized interest (66€)
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated &ifiés 3,24¢
Total earnings $ 109,41(

Fixed charges and Preferred Stock dividends:

Contractual interest expense $ 70,30¢
Amortization of deferred financing costs 2,70¢
Financing obligations interest expense (357)
Capitalized interest 66€
Interest component of rental expense 1,061
Total fixed charges 74,38¢
Preferred Stock dividends 1,881
Total fixed charges and Preferred Stock dividends $ 76,26¢
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges 1.47

Ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges and Pferred Stock dividends 1.4:




Exhibit 12.2

HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES AND
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO COMBINED FIXED CHARGES AND
PREFERRED UNIT DISTRIBUTIONS

Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2012

Earnings:
Income from continuing operations before equitgamnings of unconsolidated affiliates $ 32,43¢
Fixed charges 74,38¢
Capitalized interest (66€)
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated &ifiés 3,23(
Total earnings $ 109,39:

Fixed charges and Preferred Unit distributions:

Contractual interest expense $ 70,30¢
Amortization of deferred financing costs 2,70¢
Financing obligations interest expense (357)
Capitalized interest 66€
Interest component of rental expense 1,061
Total fixed charges 74,38¢
Preferred Unit distributions 1,881
Total fixed charges and Preferred Unit distributions $ 76,26¢
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges 1.47

Ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges and Pferred Unit distributions 1.4:




Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

I, Edward J. Fritsch, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Quarterly Report on FofivQlof Highwoods Properties, In

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisleading with respect to tl
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the Registrant as of, andli@ periods presented in this
report;

4. The Registrant’s other certifying officers drate responsible for establishing and maintaimiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrard have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaused such disclosure controls and procedurés tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidatubsidiaries, is made kno
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

(b) designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finahoigporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable amsaraegarding the reliability of financial repogirand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the Registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preseémtdds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contrnols procedures, as of the end of the period coveydhis report based on st
evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the iReant's internal control over financial reporting thatcooed during th
Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Regigs fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeadtf, the Registrant’s internal control over finahceporting; and

5. The Registrant’ other certifying officers and | have disclosedsdx on our most recent evaluation of internalrobwtver financie
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the if@bmmittee of the Registrast’Board of Directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesisethe design or operation of internal controgéofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regg’s ability to record, process, summarize and refiaincial information
and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that imesl management or other employees who have aisattifrole in the Registramst’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: October 30, 2012

/sl Edward J. Fritsch

Edward J. Fritsch
President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

[, Terry L. Stevens, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Quarterly Report on FofivQlof Highwoods Properties, In

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisleading with respect to tl
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the Registrant as of, andli@ periods presented in this
report;

4. The Registrant’s other certifying officers drate responsible for establishing and maintaimiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrard have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaused such disclosure controls and procedurés tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidatubsidiaries, is made kno
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

(b) designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finahoigporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable amsaraegarding the reliability of financial repogirand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the Registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preseémtdds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contrnols procedures, as of the end of the period coveydhis report based on st
evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the iReant's internal control over financial reporting thatcooed during th
Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Regigs fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeadtf, the Registrant’s internal control over finahceporting; and

5. The Registrant’ other certifying officers and | have disclosedsdx on our most recent evaluation of internalrobwtver financie
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the if@bmmittee of the Registrast’Board of Directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesisethe design or operation of internal controgéofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regg’s ability to record, process, summarize and refiaincial information
and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that imesl management or other employees who have aisattifrole in the Registramst’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: October 30, 2012

/sl Terry L. Stevens

Terry L. Stevens
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 31.3

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

I, Edward J. Fritsch, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on FofvQlof Highwoods Realty Limited Partnerst

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisleading with respect to tl
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the Registrant as of, andli@ periods presented in this
report;

4. The Registrant’s other certifying officers drate responsible for establishing and maintaimiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrard have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaused such disclosure controls and procedurés tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidatubsidiaries, is made kno
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

(b) designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finahoigporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable amsaraegarding the reliability of financial repogirand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the Registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preseémtdds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contrnols procedures, as of the end of the period coveydhis report based on st
evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the iReant's internal control over financial reporting thatcooed during th
Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Regigs fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeadtf, the Registrant’s internal control over finahceporting; and

5. The Registrant’ other certifying officers and | have disclosedsdx on our most recent evaluation of internalrobwtver financie
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the if@bmmittee of the Registrast’Board of Directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesisethe design or operation of internal controgéofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regg’s ability to record, process, summarize and refiaincial information
and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that imesl management or other employees who have aisattifrole in the Registramst’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: October 30, 2012

/sl Edward J. Fritsch

Edward J. Fritsch
President and Chief Executive Officer of the GehBeatner




Exhibit 31.4

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

[, Terry L. Stevens, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this Quarterly Report on FofvQlof Highwoods Realty Limited Partnerst

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatommny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisleading with respect to tl
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statemems other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the Registrant as of, andli@ periods presented in this
report;

The Registrant’s other certifying officers drate responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrard have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaused such disclosure controls and procedurés tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidatubsidiaries, is made kno
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

(b) designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finahoigporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable amsaraegarding the reliability of financial repogirand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the Registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preseémtdds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contrnols procedures, as of the end of the period coveydhis report based on st
evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the iReant's internal control over financial reporting thatcooed during th
Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Regigs fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeadtf, the Registrant’s internal control over finahceporting; and

The Registrant’ other certifying officers and | have disclosedsdx on our most recent evaluation of internalrobtver financie
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the if@bmmittee of the Registrast’Board of Directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesisethe design or operation of internal controgéofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regg’s ability to record, process, summarize and refiaincial information
and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that imesl management or other employees who have aisattifrole in the Registramst’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: October 30, 2012

/sl Terry L. Stevens

Terry L. Stevens
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offickthe
General Partner



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Highwaderoperties, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Qtfar period ende8eptember 3
2012 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Csion on the date hereof (the “Report),Edward J. Fritsch, President and C
Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuanil8 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to 90t Sarbane®xley Act of 2002, tha

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934, as amended; ¢

2) The information contained in the Report fairly pmets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of
Company.

/s/ Edward J. Fritsch

Edward J. Fritsch
President and Chief Executive Officer

October 30, 2012




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Highwaderoperties, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Qtfar period ende8eptember 3
2012 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Cimsion on the date hereof (the “Report;)Terry L. Stevens, Senior Vice President

Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify,rpuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursua8ta06 of the Sarban&3xley Act o
2002, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934, as amended; ¢

2) The information contained in the Report fairly pmets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of
Company.

/sl Terry L. Stevens

Terry L. Stevens
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

October 30, 2012




Exhibit 32.3

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Highwsoddealty Limited Partnership (the “Operating Parth#™”) on Form 109 for the
period ended September 30, 2012 as filed with #wifties and Exchange Commission on the date héren“Report”),l, Edward J. Fritscl
President and Chief Executive Officer of Highwod®perties, Inc., general partner of the OperaBagtnership, certify, pursuant to
U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 db#nbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934, as amended; ¢

2) The information contained in the Report fairly pmets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of
Operating Partnership.

/sl Edward J. Fritsch

Edward J. Fritsch
President and Chief Executive Officer of the GehBeatner

October 30, 2012




Exhibit 32.4

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Highwsoddealty Limited Partnership (the “Operating Parth#™”) on Form 109 for the
period ended September 30, 2012 as filed with #miffties and Exchange Commission on the date h@ten“Report”),l, Terry L. Steven:
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial OfficeHighwoods Properties, Inc., general partner ef @perating Partnership, certify, purst
to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 8@tdarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934, as amended; ¢

2) The information contained in the Report fairly prets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of
Operating Partnership.

/sl Terry L. Stevens

Terry L. Stevens
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officethe General Partner

October 30, 2012



